
 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

September 8
th

, 2015 

 

6:00 PM Closed Session 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex 

Page 1 of 157



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  1 

Regular Meeting 2 

May 4th, 2015 3 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 

Camden, North Carolina 6 

MINUTES 7 

 8 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held 9 

on May 4th, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The 10 

following Commissioners were present: 11 

 12 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 13 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White; 14 

 15 

Also attending were County Finance Officer Stephanie Humphries, County 16 

Attorney John Morrison and Clerk to the Board Angela Wooten.  Present for 17 

purposes of making a presentation(s) or providing supporting information for 18 

agenda items were the following persons:  Planning Director Dan Porter, Tax 19 

Administrator Lisa Anderson. 20 

 21 

 22 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 23 

 24 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the May 4th, 2015 meeting of the 25 

Camden County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 26 

 27 

 28 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 29 

 30 

Commissioner Sandra Duckwall gave the invocation and led those present in the 31 

Pledge of Allegiance. 32 

 33 

 34 

Public Comments   35 

 36 

None 37 

 38 

 39 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Consideration of Agenda  40 

 41 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Not 42 

hearing any changes, Chairman Michael McLain called for a motion.   43 

 44 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  45 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 46 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 47 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 48 

voting. 49 

 50 

 51 

Presentations 52 

 53 

Item 3.A - Keith Hamm, BA, QP Mobile Crisis Supervisor 54 

 55 

Keith Hamm, Mobile Crisis Supervisor for the Albemarle Area gave a brief 56 

overview of the Mobile Crisis Program and how it has impacted the lives of 57 

several Camden Citizen in 2014. 58 

 59 

Integrated Family Services PLLC Mobile Crisis Management is a service available 60 

24 hours a day/365 days per year at no cost to the individual receiving the service. 61 

Our Mobile Crisis Team is endorsed by East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) 62 

to provide this service in Northeastern NC including Camden. 63 

 64 

Mobile crisis responds to individuals in the community in an effort to deescalate 65 

their crisis, develop appropriate strategies for symptom reduction, and make 66 

linkages to services designed to prevent future crisis situations. This service 67 

responds to crisis situations involving mental health, substance abuse, and 68 

individuals who are developmentally delayed. 69 

 70 

In 2014, IPS Mobile Crisis responded to 30 individuals in Camden County and 71 

83% were diverted from inpatient care and incarceration. Of those individuals, 5 72 

requests came from Law Enforcement. Additionally, 7 clients were referred 73 

directly from schools in Camden County. 74 

 75 

 76 

 77 

 78 

 79 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Public Hearings 80 

 81 

Item 4.A - Ordinance 2015-04-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2015-03-11) 82 

Harbinger Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp – Gary Dunston 83 

 84 

Commissioner Sandra Duckwall made a motion to go into public hearing for 85 

Ordinance No. 2015-04-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2015-03-11) Harbinger 86 

Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp – Gary Dunston.  The 87 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 88 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 89 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 90 

voting. 91 

 92 

Planning Director Dan Porter, advised the board Mr. Gary Dunstan owner/part 93 

owner of both properties has applied to rezone approximately 41 (farmland) of 94 

the 50 plus acres from Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1). 95 

Property located at the intersections of Sandy Lane, Keeter Barn and Sharon 96 

Church Roads in South Mills Township. Staff presented the rezoning to the 97 

Planning Board on April 15, 2015 with the applicant present and after discussion 98 

Planning Board made the following motions:  99 

1. Consistency Statement: Approved a motion that the application for rezoning 100 

was consistent with both the CAMA Land Use Plan and Comprehensive Plan 101 

as both allowed densities of 1 acre lots.  102 

2. Motion was made and approved to rezone the 41 acres (farmland) from Basic 103 

Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1).  104 

 105 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any comments from members of 106 

the public that wish to come forward. 107 

 108 

Larry Hewitt of Sharon Church Road in South Mills states that he and his wife 109 

chose their 9 acre lot because it has been a dream of theirs to live in the country.    110 

He would not like to rezone the development to 1 acre lots.   111 

 112 

Mark Bissell advises that there are many benefits of having one acre lots allow 113 

them to build a higher level of design with all housing frontages on interior 114 

streets.  He also mentions that there will be no driveways or mail boxes on the 115 

state roads.  The entire woodland area can be either preserved or turned into a 116 

park. He believes the county will like the development.  He then asks if there are 117 

any questions from the board. 118 

 119 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall asked how many houses would be built on the 41 120 

acres. 121 

 122 

Mr. Bissell replied it would be in the low 40’s. 123 

 124 

Commissioner Tom White requested information with regard to size of the 125 

proposed homes when built on 1 acre lots. 126 

 127 

Gary Dunston of Kitty Hawk is one of the developers and advised they are 128 

proposing to 2000sq/ft. – 2500sq/ft. homes in the $300,000 range.   129 

 130 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any further comments from the 131 

public regarding this issue.  Hearing none, he advised that the board would vote 132 

at the next regular meeting due to opposition heard during the public Hearing. 133 

 134 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to close the public hearing.  The 135 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 136 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 137 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 138 

voting. 139 

 140 

 141 

Board Appointments 142 

 143 

Item 5.A - Economic Improvement Council 144 

 145 

Chairman McLain informed the board that the Economic Improvement Council 146 

is looking for a volunteer to replace Camden’s current representative.  Clerk to 147 

the Board Ms. Wooten confirms that currently the county does not have any 148 

volunteer applications on file for the Economic Development Commission and 149 

that Commission meets every other month..  150 

 151 

Chairman Michael McLain requests that anyone interested in serving on the 152 

Economic Development Commission should completed a Volunteer Application 153 

and submit it to the County Managers office.  Once there is a willing volunteer on 154 

file, he will request this appointment be added to the agenda for the following 155 

regular meeting.   156 

   157 

 158 

 159 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Consent Agenda 160 

 161 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 162 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 163 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 164 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 165 

not voting. 166 

 167 
 168 

Item 6.A - Draft Minutes –March 2nd, 2015 169 

 170 
 171 

Item 6.B - Budget Amendments – BA022 172 

 173 

 
 174 

 175 
 176 

Item 6.C - School Budget Amendments 177 

 178 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 

 
 179 

 180 
 181 

 182 

 183 

 184 

 185 

 186 

 187 

 188 

 189 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.D - Expenditure Request 190 

 191 

The Camden Volunteer Fire Department is requesting funds for needed 192 

equipment. 193 

 194 

 
 195 

 196 
 197 

Item 6.E - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 198 

 199 

 

 
 200 

 201 
 202 

 203 

 204 

 205 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.F - Expenditure Request 206 

 207 

The Camden Volunteer Fire Department is requesting to borrow funds for new 208 

Fire Truck. Propose 1% interest to avoid market rates and still provide interest to 209 

county for loss of interest on cash from bank and a repayment plan of $100,000 210 

per year over 5 years. 211 

 212 

 
 213 

 214 
 215 

Item 6.G - Volunteer Form - CEDC 216 

 217 

 
 218 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.H - Consortium Agreement Resolution 219 

 220 

 
 221 

 222 
 223 

Item 6.I - 2015 National Day of Prayer 224 

 225 

 
 226 

 227 
 228 

 229 

 230 

 231 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.J - Older Americans Month 2015 232 

 233 

 
 234 

 235 

New Business 236 

 237 

Item 7.A - Monthly Tax Report 238 

 239 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson presented the Monthly Tax Report for March 240 

2015. 241 

 242 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Top 30 Unpaid 

 
Top 30 Oldest 

 
Top 30 Unpaid 

 
Top 30 Oldest 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 243 

The County Attorney John Morrison advised the board that Potomac Timber 244 

Investments paid their taxes of $13,979.14 in full. 245 

 246 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the monthly tax report as 247 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 248 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 249 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 250 

not voting. 251 

 252 
 253 

Item 7.B - Engineering Aspects of A Waste Water Treatment Plant 254 

 255 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs advised that the Engineer, Mr. Robey, was unable to 256 

attend tonight’s meeting therefore he makes a motion to recess this 257 

Commissioners meeting until 3:00 Thursday in the conference room of Hyman 258 

and Robey located at the intersection of Gumberry Road and US 158. 259 

 260 

Chairman McLain adds this meeting will be open to the public. 261 

 262 

Commissioners Riggs’s motion to recess passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice 263 

Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom 264 

White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 265 

Commissioner not voting. 266 

 267 

 268 

Commissioner’s Report 269 

 270 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall gave the Monthly Library Report.  271 

 272 

Commissioner Tom White provided some highlights from the very successful  273 

“Paddle for the Border”  in which there were 311 participants and many state 274 

dignitaries. 275 

 276 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs attended a K-12 Funding Class at the School of 277 

Government and wanted to let everyone know school funding reports are now on 278 

line for the public to view. 279 

  280 

 281 

 282 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Chairman Michael McLain  had the following items to report: 283 

 284 

 There is a Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for the Dollar General’s Grand Opening on 285 

Saturday May 9th, 2015 at 7:30 AM and invites the public to come. 286 

 There is an ECBH Grant for handicap accessible playground equipment and 287 

hopes the county will apply. 288 

 289 

 290 

Information from Board and Staff 291 

 292 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 293 

of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 294 

 295 

A. Elizabeth City Area Chamber Of Commerce 296 

B. Economic Value of the College of the Albemarle 297 

C. Library Report - April 298 

D. Scotland County Resolution 299 

E. County News April 20 2015 300 

F. N.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority Approves Grants 301 

G. NCACC Legislative Bulletin – April 17, 2015 302 

H. NCACC Legislative Bulletin - April 24, 2015 303 

I. House Bill 726 304 

J. Stepping Up 305 

K. Will ACOS Raise Medical Prices? 306 

L. Sales Tax & Revenue Collection Report 307 

M. Excise Tax Publication 308 

N. Register of Deeds - April 309 

O. National Flood Insurance Program Community Assistance Visit 310 

P. ECBH 311 

Q. LME County General Funds Report 312 

R. LGFCU Gives Back 313 

 314 

 315 

 316 

 317 

 318 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Closed Session 319 

 320 

Chairman Michael McLain states the need to enter closed session pursuant to 321 

NCGS 143.318.11(a)(3) and 143.318.11(a)(5) potential litigation and contract 322 

negotiations. 323 

 324 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to enter closed session at 7:58 PM.  325 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 326 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 327 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 328 

voting 329 

 330 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to come out of closed session at 8:10 331 

PM.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 332 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 333 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 334 

voting 335 

 336 

 337 

Meeting Recessed 338 

 339 

At 8:12 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to 340 

come before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 341 

meeting was recessed until 3:00 PM Thursday in the conference room of Hyman 342 

and Robey located at the intersection of Gumberry Road and US 158. 343 

 344 

 345 

 346 

   347 

 Chairman Michael McLain 348 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 349 

 350 

ATTEST: 351 

 352 

 353 

  354 

Angela L. Wooten 355 

Clerk to the Board 356 



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners September 8
th
, 2015 

  Page 1 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and 

all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute 

discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting 

September 8
th

, 2015 

6:00 P.M. - Closed Session 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

Camden, North Carolina 

 
 

6:00 P.M. Call to Order - Chairman P. Michael McLain 
 

 Closed Session - Pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) - Consultation with Attorney to 

discuss potential litigation.  
 

7:00 P.M. Welcome 

 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance – Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall 
 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 
 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of 

comments may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other 

issues. 
 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 3 Presentations 
 

A. Camden Youth Football   ......................................................................... (Pg. 5-31) 

 

ITEM 4. Public Hearings 

 

A. Public Meeting; Sketch Plan Mill Run - Common Open Space Major 

             Subdivision (UDO 2015-06-07)   .......................................................... (Pg. 32-66) 

 

ITEM 5. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

 

A. Monthly Tax Report............................................................................... (Pg. 67-74) 

 

B. Core Area Waste Water Treatment Plant Proposal for Hydrogeologic and 

Soils Analysis   ...................................................................................... (Pg. 75-80) 

 

C. Darkness to Light: Child Sexual Abuse Awareness and Prevention 

Training Program ................................................................................... (Pg. 81-85) 

 

 

Page 2 of 157



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners September 8
th
, 2015 

  Page 2 of 3 

ITEM 6. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 
 

A. Jury Commission   ................................................................................. (Pg. 86-87) 

 

ITEM 7. Consent Agenda (All items listed below are routine and will be approved by one 

motion. Separate discussion of an item(s) will be held by request of a member of the 

Board.) 
 

A. Draft Minutes) 

  May 4
th
, 2015 Regular Session .......................................... (Attachment A) 

  June 1
st
, 2015 Regular Session........................................... (Attachment B) 

  June 15
th
, 2015 Regular Session ........................................ (Attachment C) 

  May 19
th
 & 21

st
, 2015 Budget Work Sessions ................... (Attachment D) 

  June 8
th
 2015 Budget Hearing ............................................ (Attachment E) 

B. Budget Amendments – BA002 through BA005  ................................... (Pg. 89-93) 

C. Expenditure Request .............................................................................. (Pg. 94-98) 

D. Tax Collection Report   ........................................................................ (Pg. 99-100) 

E. Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases   .................................................. (Pg. 101-105) 

F. Tax Authorization to Collect (October Renewals)  ........................... (Pg. 106-107) 

G. Constitution Week Proclamation   ..................................................... (Pg. 108-110) 

H. Set Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-08-01 –  

 Proposed Amendments to Chapter 151 (Unified Development 

Ordinance) of the Camden County Code Ordinances ........................ (Pg. 111-120) 

I. Shiloh Baptist Church Resolution  ..................................................... (Pg. 121-128) 

 

ITEM 8. Commissioner's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report (For discussion and possible action) 

 

A. Board Vacancies –  

    Parks and Recreation 

   Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 
 B. All BOC Meetings are posted on the county website  

 

Recess Commissioner's Meeting 
 

 

SOUTH CAMDEN WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

1. Call to Order 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consideration of Agenda 

6. New Business (For Discussion and Possible Approval). 

A. Monthly Update to the Board    ........................................................................... (Pg. 129-130) 

B. Construction of Seymour Drive Well Site and Raw Water Main   ...................... (Pg. 131-144) 

7. Other Matters (For Discussion and possible action.) 

8. Adjourn 

 

Page 3 of 157



 

Agenda   -  Camden County Board of Commissioners September 8
th
, 2015 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

Reconvene Commissioner’s Meeting 

 

ITEM 10. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies   ......................... (Pg. 145-157) 

 

A. Sales Tax Report  ...................................................................................... (Pg. 146) 

B. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - July .......................................... (Pg. 147-148) 

C. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - August ............................................ (Pg. 149) 

D. EMS Monthly Report - July   .................................................................... (Pg. 150) 

E. Library Monthly Report - August ...................................................... (Pg. 151-152) 

F. New Deputy Commissioners Appointed     ....................................... (Pg. 153-154) 

G. Mobile App for Job Seekers   ................................................................... (Pg. 155) 

H. NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans   ................... (Pg. 156-157) 

  

ITEM 11. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

 

ITEM 12. Adjourn 

 

 

Page 4 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   3.A 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8th, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (26 Pages) 

Submitted By: Camden Youth Football 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Camden Youth Football 
 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Camden Youth Football presented by Karyn Smith 

 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only 
 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 5 of 157



Camden Bears Youth Football & 
Cheerleading 

Page 6 of 157



Objectives 
• Background  

• Updates 

• Requests 

Page 7 of 157



History 

• Camden Youth Football and Cheerleading (CYFC) 
organization was established in 2002 as the first 
youth football program in Camden County 

• Member of the Albemarle Youth Football League 
Dare, Currituck, Camden, Pasquotank, Perquimans, Chowan, 
Gates, and Hertford  counties 

• Strengthened Camden Middle School and High 
School sports programs 

• Practiced and held home games at the Camden 
Community Park 

 

Page 8 of 157



Background 

After 13 years of dedication to Camden 
Youth Football and Cheerleading (CYFC), 
the original founders asked Camden 
Parks and Recreation to take over 
administrative responsibilities while 
they continued to volunteer their time 
to the organization. This request was 
made on 5/27/15 via a letter to Parks 
and Recreation. 

Page 9 of 157



Page 10 of 157



Misunderstanding 

On 6/5/15 the County Manager replied with 
a letter to the organization  stating : 

 

“It was with great regret that I read of your 
organization’s intentions to no longer offer a 
youth football and cheerleading program in 
Camden County.”   

 

This was not stated in the 5/27/15 letter. 

Page 11 of 157



Page 12 of 157



Response from Camden Youth 
Football and Cheerleading 

Summary of email reply  on 6/08/2015 from CYFC to County 
Manager:  

 
• In the letter dated 5/27/15 from CYFC to Camden Parks 

and Recreation, their intent was to continue the 
program and hand off administrative duties to the 
county. 

•  Since the County declined to take over the 
administrative duties, then they planned to continue 
the program by looking into other options. 

• They would contact Parks and Recreation in the next 
several weeks to keep them informed of their plans. 

• It was NOT  the intent of Camden Youth Football and 
Cheerleading to end the program.  
 

 
 

 

Page 13 of 157



Email from Camden Youth Football and 
Cheerleading 

Page 14 of 157



June 8, 2015 – June 12, 2015 
Gearing Up for the CYFC Sign Ups 

• All Grandy Primary School students 
receive flyer from Camden Youth 
Football and Cheerleading regarding 
signups on June 22, 2015. 
 

• All Camden Intermediate School 
students receive flyer from Camden 
Youth Football and Cheerleading 
regarding signups on June 22, 2015. 

 

Page 15 of 157



Seven Days Later…. 

Monday, June 15, 2015 Commissioners Meeting 

• County Manager requested a motion be made 
to operate youth soccer in place of the 
“dissolved” Camden Youth Football and 
Cheerleading program. 

• It was stated that there would be an agreement 
between the Shiloh Sharks and Soccer Program 
to share the fields at Camden Community Park. 

Page 16 of 157



Another Seven Days Later… 

June 22, 2015 
• Signups begin at 6pm 
• Daily Advance article is published stating:  

• “Camden Commissioners agreed last week to 
allow the Camden Youth League to use 
practice fields for soccer games and practices 
after one of two football leagues appeared to 
end its program” 

• “McPherson told County Manager Mike 
Renshaw in a June 8 email that he would 
continue to examine options for keeping the 
Bears program operating.” 

Page 17 of 157



New Leaders for the Bears 

• Mrs. Karyn Smith and Mr. Randy Smith 
agreed to run the Camden Youth Football 
and Cheerleading Organization  

• Conducted  first meeting with concerned 
parents and coaches regarding the future of 
the youth football program 

• Obtained information from prior leadership 
regarding administrative requirements 

 

Page 18 of 157



Page 19 of 157



• Met with County Government officials to develop a plan 
for reinstatement 

• Established a Board of Directors 
• Met with Attorney to establish Articles of Incorporation 

for Camden Bears Youth Football 
• Purchased liability insurance 
• Secured temporary alternative practice fields from 

Randy and Bob Kraniak 
• Completed application for 501c3 paperwork for non-

profit status 

Tasks Completed 

Page 20 of 157



Page 21 of 157



Starting the Season 

• Started first practice on August 10, 2015 

• Established three football teams (7-8), (9-10), 
(11-12 year olds) 

• Established three cheerleading teams  

• Total enrollment is 85 football players and 30 
cheerleaders 

• Majority of participants are Camden County 
residents 

 

 

Page 22 of 157



Page 23 of 157



Camden Bears Open House 
August 25, 2015 

Participants Include: 
– Commissioners 

– Itza Boutza Pizza 

– Camden County Public Library 

– Randy and Bob Kraniak 

– Parents 

– Players 

– Cheerleaders 

– Community 

Page 24 of 157



Page 25 of 157



Page 26 of 157



Progress 

• Received permission to have two 
home games during our regular 
season from Camden County Parks 
and Recreation 

• Received permission to have a 
lighted field, using the high school 
soccer field after 6:30pm when no 
home soccer games are scheduled. 

 

Page 27 of 157



Immediate Requests 

• Reconsider our Category II status with the county, 
due to the misunderstanding regarding the 
continuation of the youth football program. 

• Accept documentation of all required paperwork 
to reinstate our Category II status.  Accept our 
application for the 501c3 as sufficient 
documentation for the county requirements. 

• Provide lighted field space for three practices per 
week and Saturday home games for all youth 
football and cheerleading participants. 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 157



Ongoing Requests 
• County Government to understand that youth 

football and cheerleading is important to Camden 
County Residents. 

• County Government to support all youth sports, 
regardless of the type of sport,  by providing field 
space fairly and adequately for all youth 
organizations. 

• County Government to plan for an increase in 
youth sports due to fall youth soccer, potential fall 
youth baseball,  and youth football and 
cheerleading. 

• County Government to consider building a sports 
complex because it is critical to the growth to our 
community and well being of our children.  

Page 29 of 157



Thank You 

• Coming out to the Camden Bear Youth 
Football and Cheerleading Open House 

• Working with the organization as it continues 
to grow 

• Providing us the opportunity to address you 
today and for considering our requests. 

 

Page 30 of 157



Page 31 of 157



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:  4.A 

     

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   Sketch Plan/Staff Findings/TRC inputs  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Public Meeting; Sketch Plan  
                       Mill Run - Common Open Space Major 
                       Subdivision (UDO 2015-06-07) 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Harbinger Land & Timber LLC/Assorted Development Corporation has applied 
for Sketch Plan approval for Mill Run Subdivision (45 lots) as a Common Open 
Space (Article 151.290 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances) Major 
Subdivision.  Application went to the Planning Board on July 15, 2015 and after 
presentation by Planning Staff and discussion made a recommendation to 
approve the yield plan/sketch plan with the recommendations listed in Planning 
Staffs Findings. 
 
Rezoning from Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1) approved by 
Board of Commissioners on June 1, 2015 (Ordinance No. 2015-04-01). 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Consideration of yield/sketch plan for Mill Run Major Subdivision. 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 32 of 157



Page 33 of 157



Page 34 of 157



Page 35 of 157



Page 36 of 157



Page 37 of 157



Page 38 of 157



Page 39 of 157



Page 40 of 157



Page 41 of 157



Page 42 of 157



MILL RUN

SOUTH MILLS TOWNSHIP  CAMDEN COUNTY  NORTH CAROLINA

5-28-15

N/A

MSB

KFW

MSB

BPG

4562

1 5

C
A

M
D

E
N

 
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
S

O
U

T
H

 
M

I
L

L
S

 
T

W
N

S
P

.

 

P

R

E

L

I

M

I

N

A

R

Y

F

O

R

 

R

E

V

I

E

W

P

U

R

P

O

S

E

S

 

O

N

L

Y

Page 43 of 157



S

A

N

D

Y

 
L

A

N

E

 
-

 
(

S

R

 
1

2

2

7

)

 
4

5

'
 
R

/
W

K
E

E
T

E
R

 B
A

R
N

 R
O

A
D

 - (S
R

 1
2
2
5
)  6

0
' R

/W

L
I
L
L
Y

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1
2
2
5
)
 
 
6
0
' 
R

/
W

S

H

A

R

O

N

 
C

H

U

R

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1

2

3

1

)
 
 
6

0

'
 
R

/
W

AaA

StB

ToA

PtA

CfA

RoA

CfA

AaA

M

I
L

L

 
R

U

N

 
C

R

E

E

K

457500SK-C3D2



Page 44 of 157



05-05-15

1"=200'

MSB

KFW

MSB

BPG

4575

3 5















































C
A

M
D

E
N

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
S

O
U

T
H

 
M

I
L

L
S

 
T

W
N

S
P

.

457500YP1



SURVEY LEGEND

NC NAD83(2011) GRID NORTH

AREA CALCULATIONS:

PRELIMINARY YIELD PLAN:

Page 45 of 157



S

A

N

D

Y

 
L

A

N

E

 
-

 
(

S

R

 
1

2

2

7

)

 
4

5

'
 
R

/
W

K
E

E
T

E
R

 B
A

R
N

 R
O

A
D

 - (S
R

 1
2
2
5
)  6

0
' R

/W

L
I
L
L
Y

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1
2
2
5
)
 
 
6
0
' 
R

/
W

S

H

A

R

O

N

 
C

H

U

R

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1

2

3

1

)
 
 
6

0

'
 
R

/
W

AaA

StB

ToA

PtA

CfA

RoA

CfA

AaA

M

I
L

L

 
R

U

N

 
C

R

E

E

K

457500SK-C3D2



SOIL TYPES

CONSERVATION AREA SUMMARY

Page 46 of 157



S

A

N

D

Y

 
L

A

N

E

 
-

 
(

S

R

 
1

2

2

7

)

 
4

5

'
 
R

/
W

K
E

E
T

E
R

 B
A

R
N

 R
O

A
D

 - (S
R

 1
2
2
5
)  6

0
' R

/W

L
I
L
L
Y

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1
2
2
5
)
 
 
6
0
' 
R

/
W

S

H

A

R

O

N

 
C

H

U

R

C

H

 
R

O

A

D

 
-
 
(
S

R

 
1

2

3

1

)
 
 
6

0

'
 
R

/
W

M

I
L

L

 
 
R

U

N

 
 
L

O

O

P

BMP POND

MILL RUN PARK

AaA

StB

ToA

PtA

CfA

RoA

CfA

AaA

M

I
L

L

 
R

U

N

 
C

R

E

E

K

457500SK-C3D2



COMMON OPEN SPACE (CONSERVATION) PLAN

ACTIVE RECREATION AREAS

ENDOWMENT FUND

Page 47 of 157



Page 48 of 157



Page 49 of 157



Page 50 of 157



Page 51 of 157



Page 52 of 157



Page 53 of 157



Page 54 of 157



Page 55 of 157



Page 56 of 157



Page 57 of 157



Page 58 of 157



Page 59 of 157



Page 60 of 157



Page 61 of 157



Page 62 of 157



Page 63 of 157



Page 64 of 157



Page 65 of 157



Page 66 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.A 

 

 New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8
th

, 2015 

Attachments:   (7 Pages) 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson  

 Tax Administrator,  
 

ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Tax Report  
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Monthly Tax Report for July 2015 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 Review & Approve 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 67 of 157



Page 68 of 157



Page 69 of 157



Page 70 of 157



Page 71 of 157



Page 72 of 157



Page 73 of 157



Page 74 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.B 

 

New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (4 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County Manager 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   Core Area Waste Water Treatment 

Plant Proposal for Hydrogeologic and 

Soils Analysis 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Attached to this report is a proposal for a geohydrology and soils analysis evaluation 

submitted by Edwin Andrews and Associates, P.C.  The purpose of this study is to determine 

the suitability of an approximately 27 acre tract of land (Williams Farms of North Carolina) 

for a future Core Area Waste Water Treatment Plant using high-rate infiltration 

(amphidrome) technology.  The proposed site which will be evaluated is located 

approximately 1 mile east of the intersection of HWY 158 East and HWY 34, across from 

the Camden Business Park.  The 27 acre tract of land would provide expandable future waste 

water treatment capacity to 120,000 GPD within the Core Service Area. 

 

The attached proposal is divided into two phases.  Phase 1 includes preliminary test borings 

and measurements of water infiltration rates on the site as well as twelve geotechnical 

borings to be performed by GET Solutions.  These geotechnical borings will be used to 

configure the exact locations of the high infiltration sand basins using the best sand aquifer 

matrix possible.  Phase 1 also includes soil analyses, test well construction, aquifer testing 

and construction of a steady-state computer model (using MODFLOW software) to evaluate 

alternative placements of the infiltration basins.  The proposal anticipates completing Phase 1 

testing and evaluations within 8 weeks of Notice to Proceed.  The total proposed cost of 

Phase 1 testing is $24,260 ($16,000 of which is the geohydrologic and soils analysis and 

$8,260 for GET Solutions to perform the necessary geotechnical borings). 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 75 of 157



Phase 2 testing under the attached proposal would be used to finalize all soil, argonomic, and 

hydrogeologic analyses needed for permitting of the WWTP at the state level.  It was decided 

that only upon a favorable Phase 1 geohydrologic report would the county proceed with 

funding for Phase 2 testing in the proposed amount of $19,780.  

 

The Finance Officer has prepared Budget Amendment 2015-16-BA003 reflecting the transfer 

of $25,000 of Capital Reserve Fund Balance to cover the cost of Phase 1 testing. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve funding for 

Phase 1 geohydrologic analyses and geothechnical borings at the described Williams Farms 

of North Carolina site in the amount of $24,260 using Capital Reserve Fund Balance and 

authorize the Manager to execute the attached Phase 1 agreement. 

Page 76 of 157



Page 77 of 157



Page 78 of 157



Page 79 of 157



Page 80 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   5.C 

 

New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   3 (10 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Darkness to Light: Child 

Sexual Abuse Awareness and Prevention 

Training Program 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

On August 31
st
 the County Manager, Camden County Public Schools (CCPS) 

Superintendent, and Camden County Sheriff had an opportunity to attend a 

presentation by Ed and Patricia Boelte concerning a child sexual abuse awareness 

and prevention training program which they facilitate.  The program, known as 

Stewards of Children by Darkness to Light, is a 2-hour course approved for 

Continuing Education Credits by the National Association of Social Workers and 

the National Board of Certified Counselors.  A summary of the Darkness to Light: 

Stewards of Children 5 Steps to Protecting Our Children program is included in 

this packet. 

 

While it is an uncomfortable topic for discussion, child sexual abuse is an 

enormously important social malady that can only be addressed by shining light 

on the issue and increasing public awareness.  No community is immune from the 

financial and human costs associated with this epidemic.  In the United States 

more than 400,000 children are sexually abused each year…1 in 10 children face 

the horror of sexual abuse.  Ninety percent of victims are abused by someone they 

know and trust, 60% of abusers are acquaintances and 30% are immediate or 

extended family members.  Only through increasing public awareness and 

training can we begin to eradicate child sexual abuse in our community. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 81 of 157



 

Mr. and Mrs. Boelte have approached Camden County with an offer to facilitate 

the Stewards of Children: 5 Steps to Protecting Our Children course to members 

of the Camden County Sheriff’s Office, Department of Social Services, and 

teachers and staff of Camden County Public Schools on Friday, October 2
nd

.   

 

While the Boelte’s charge no fees for facilitating this course, a nominal charge of 

$10 per participant is requested to cover the cost of the course workbooks and 

handouts.  The Camden County Sheriff, Director of Social Services, and CCPS 

Superintendent have expressed a desire to have select members of their staff 

participate in this training.  Camden County would cover the cost of county 

employees using existing training funds, and CCPS would cover the materials 

costs for their staff to attend.  Superintendent Hawkins has agreed to provide an 

appropriately-sized school facility for the training session which will take place 

on a scheduled mandatory teacher workday. 

 

In addition to the Friday October 2
nd

 course offering, the Boelte’s have also 

offered to facilitate a second 2-hour session on Saturday, October 3
rd

.  It was 

discussed that a local church might be willing to host such a session which would 

be open to the general public at no charge except the $10 fee to cover materials 

costs.  The County Manager will outreach to the local churches to determine 

which might be available and willing to serve as a host facility.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve the above 

described Child Sexual Abuse Awareness and Prevention Program sponsored by 

Darkness to Light and facilitated by Ed and Patricia Boelte.  The materials fees 

associated with county staff attendance will be covered using previously budgeted 

training funds (estimated to be $200 based upon projected staff attendance). 

 

In addition, the County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve 

funding in an amount not to exceed $450 to be provided to the Boelte’s to cover their 

travel, meal, and overnight lodging expenses. 

Page 82 of 157



>>>

ABOUT DARKNESS TO LIGHT
Darkness to Light (D2L) is a national nonprofit organization that provides 
individuals, organizations, and communities with the tools to protect 
children from sexual abuse. Using an evidence-informed platform, D2L 
programs teach adults to prevent, recognize, and react responsibly to 
child sexual abuse.

Who We Serve

Children are the ultimate beneficiary of what we do. We seek to provide 
all children with the opportunity to grow up healthy and happy, with 
their sexual boundaries intact. In this endeavor, D2L enlists the support and assistance of concerned adults in 
communities across the nation and globe, including:

• Educators in public and private school settings

• Staff and volunteers in youth serving organizations

• Staff and infant/youth workers in faith centers

• Students enrolled in youth serving degree plans at higher learning institutions

• Parents and caregivers

What We Do

Darkness to Light offers a variety of child-protective programs, including:

• 5 Steps to Protecting Our Children™, a blueprint for preventing child sexual abuse.

• Stewards of Children®, a prevention program for adults that increases knowledge, improves attitudes, and 
changes child-protective behaviors. This program is available online or through a facilitator-led session.

• Partner in Prevention, a designation available to organizations that implement child protective policies and 
provide Stewards of Children training to all volunteers and staff who work with children.

• Prevent Now!, a model of community engagement that provides the tools for building and sustaining 
community prevention efforts.

• 866-FOR-LIGHT, a help line supported by a network of trained information and referral systems throughout 
the country. This crisis line routes callers to a referral service in their community where they can get 
information and support services.

Page 83 of 157



training

• Over 7,000 authorized program facilitators in all 50 states and 16 international locations - the largest network 
of child protection advocates worldwide.

• Over 900,000 adults trained to protect children, worldwide.

• Over 100,000 school personnel training in the state of Texas as part of a statewide initiative legislatively 
mandated, and guided by the Texas Education Agency. 

• 600 Texas teachers trained on August 21, 2013, representing the largest single-day training of its kind.

• Nearly 40,000 teachers trained in cooperation with the South Carolina Department of Education — the first 
statewide educator-focused prevention program in the country.

• 799 teachers trained in Fayette County, Georgia, on May 28, 2014, setting a new single-day training record 
and becoming the first Metro Atlanta school system to train all staff in child sexual abuse prevention. 

• Implementation in course curriculum at multiple colleges and universities throughout the United States, 
including a campus-wide training initiative for all staff, volunteers, and cadets at The Citadel in Charleston, 
South Carolina, and training initiatives at all Delaware universities.

• Training partnerships with over 250 YMCAs throughout the country, including statewide Y initiatives in New 
Jersey, Delaware, Massachusetts, and Rhode Island.

• Ongoing training of all New Jersey Department of Law and Public Safety employees, mandated by Acting 
Attorney General John J. Hoffman.

• Partnership with Association of Christian Schools International to provide training to member schools 
throughout the nation and globe.

• 11 active statewide Stewards of Children training initiatives.

recognition

• 2014 Telly Award for the Stewards of Children documentary video production.

• 2014 recognition by the United Nations Foundation as a worldwide Top 5 Child Rights program.

• 2013 Social Responsibility Champion Award from the New Jersey Alliance of YMCAs.

• 2013 designation as a model program by the U.S. Department of Justice Office of Juvenile Justice and 
Delinquency Prevention.

• 2013 Impact Grant from the Cornerstone OnDemand Foundation, enabling D2L to offer Stewards of 
Children through one of the most advanced online learning management systems available.

• 2007 Crime Prevention Program of the Year from the National Crime Prevention Council. 

@Darkness2Light/DarknesstoLight D2LBlog.com

Join the movement to end child sexual abuse! Visit www.D2L.org/Join for more information.

© 2013 Darkness to Light

Page 84 of 157



Page 85 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:   6.A 

 

BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   1 (1 Pages) 

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Jury Commission  
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 

 
Clerk of Superior Court, Paula J. Harrison, sent the attached letter requesting the Board 

of Commissioners appoint Gail R. Perry to serve on the Jury Commission. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Appoint Gail R. Perry of Shiloh to serve on the Jury Commission  

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 86 of 157



PAULA J. HARRISON, CLERK

Ex Officio Judge of Probate

^tats. of ecNoith CaxoLlna

(^zyiz-xcll Couit of JxmJtics.
CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

CAMDEN COUNTY
RO. BOX 219, 11 7 NC HWY 343 NORTH

CAMDEN, NC 27921
TELEPHONE: (252) 336-4000

FAX: (252) 336-4001

Auuust 18. 2015

Camden County Board of Commissioners
P.O.Box 190

Camden. NC 27921

JERRY R. TILLET

Resident Judge

Re: Jury Commission Appointee

Dear Commissioners:

It will soon be time for the jury commission to begin its work. This committee consists of
three members: one selected by the Senior Resident Superior Court Judge, the second
selected by the Clerk of Superior Court and the third person named by the Board of
Commissioners. This task usually takes approximately half a day to complete and the
members are paid minimum wage or at a rate approved by the commissioners.

I would ask that you consider appointing Gail R. Perry of Shiloh as the Board's candidate
for this position. As Mrs. Perry is a retired school teacher, I am sure she will be a fine
addition to the jury commission.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Respectfully,

&~

Paula J. Harrison

Clerk of Superior Court

Page 87 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.A 

 

 CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Meeting Date:   September 8th, 2015 

Attachments:   6  

Submitted By: Clerk to the Board 
  

 

ITEM TITLE:   Draft Meeting Minutes 
  

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 May 4th, 2015 - Regular Session 

 May 19th, 2015 - Budget Work Session 

 May 21st, 2015 - Budget Work Session 

 June 1st, 2015 - Regular Session 

 June 8th 2015 - Budget Hearing 

 June 15th, 2015 - Regular Session 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

For Review and Possible Approval 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 88 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.B 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   4 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Budget Amendments 
   

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

Appropriate funds for Seymore Well Project (BA 002) and 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (BA 003) Expenditures 

Approve expenditures for Debris Removal (BA 004) 

Approve expenditures and match for SM VFD state grant (BA 005) 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

Approve Request  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 89 of 157



                               2015-16-BA002 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the Water/Sewer Upgrade and Capital Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

Revenues  

23399720-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $140,000.00 

 

23330720-439710 County Contribution  $345,000.00 

  

Expenses 

237200-567201 Raw Water Main       $125,000.00 

 

237200-567202 Production Well   $250,000.00 

 

237200-503200 Engineering Fees   $  35,000.00 

 

237200-545000 Contracted Services  $  35,000.00 

 

237200-500000 Contingency   $  40,000.00 

 

Revenues 

71399660-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $345,000.00 

 

Expenses 

716600-567203 Well Project   $345,000.00 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase the budget for the Seymore Well project 

expenditures in current Fiscal Year. 

 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 8th day of September, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

Page 90 of 157



                               2015-16-BA003 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund and Capital Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

Revenues  

106810-564202 Wastewater Treatment Plant $25,000.00 

 

Expenses 

10390400-439773 Capital Reserve Transfer  $25,000.00 

 

Revenues  

71399660-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $25,000.00 

 

Expenses 

716600-564202 Wastewater Treatment Plant $25,000.00 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase the budget for the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant project expenditures in current Fiscal Year. 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 8th day of September, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 91 of 157



                               2015-16-BA004 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the Watershed Funds as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

Revenues  

36399472-439900 Fund Balance Appropriated $2,351.00 

Expenses 

364720-545000 Contracted Services  $2,351.00 

 

Expenses 

374720-545000 Contracted Services  $11,760.00 

374720-599900 Fund Reserves     $11,760.00 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase the budget for the Watershed Fund 

expenditures in current Fiscal Year. 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 8th day of September, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 92 of 157



                               2015-16-BA005 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the South Mills VFD Fund as follows: 

 

         AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT     INCREASE     DECREASE 

 

Revenues  

41360530-434815 State Grant   $30,000.00 

41399530-439990 Fund Balance Appropriated $30,000.00 

 

Expenses 

415300-564108 NC Grant Equipment  $60,000.00 

 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to increase the budget for the South Mills VFD Fund 

expenditures in current Fiscal Year. 

 

This will result in a decrease of $0 in the Contingency of the General Fund. 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 8th day of September, 2015. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chairman, Board of Commissioners 

 

Page 93 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.C 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Budget & Finance Officers 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Expenditure Request 
   

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The attached debris removal services were performed for the Shiloh, 

South Mills and Sawyer’s Creek Watershed. Each service exceeds the 

$7,000 Budget Officer approval limit for payment per the 15-16 

Budget Ordinance Article XXIV. Section 1(e). 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approve request for payment  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 94 of 157



Page 95 of 157



Page 96 of 157



Page 97 of 157



Page 98 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.D 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 

2015Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Collection Report  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Collection Report 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 99 of 157



Tax Collection Report
July 2015

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits Internet
1 3,380.57 3,380.57
2 3,244.45 3,244.45
6 6,456.96 6,456.96
7 150.00 $1,346.25 - Refund 150.00

8 1,389.83 $32.22 - Refund 1,389.83
9 964.61 964.61

10 3,977.17 3,977.17
13 2,596.36 2,596.36
14 106.40 106.40

3,458.26 3,458.26
15 3,850.08 3,850.08
16 611.20 611.20

17 2,987.33 $44.83 - Refund 2,987.33
20 8,625.39 8,625.39
21 3,325.33 3,325.33
22 402.50 402.50

23 709.66 709.66
24 7,305.07 7,305.07
27 831.78 831.78

28 6,849.73 6,849.73
29 595.97 595.97
30 135.00 135.00
31 774.78 774.78

4,739.93 4,739.93
2,350.06 2,350.06

$69,818.42 $0700 $68,937.24 $881.18

$69,818.42 $69,818.42

-$1,423.30 Refund

$0.00 Over

$0.00 Shortage
$0.00 Adjustment

$68,395.12

Submitted^: Hy^uc^K. OurKS^SUA&rr^
Approved by:

Date: ^M<T
Date:

Page 100 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.D 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 

2015Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Tax Collection Report  
     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Tax Collection Report 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 101 of 157



REFUNDS OVER $100.00

Payee Name Address 1 Address 2 Address 3 Refund Type

HALLENBURG. 45 BREAM

SUSAN OAK

TRENTON, SC Proratio
29847

REFUNDS OVER $100.00

North Carolina Vehicle Tax System

NCVTS Pending Refund report

Bills Plate Number Status Transaction Refund Description Refund ICreate Date) Authorization Date I Tax Jurisdiction I Levy Type I Change IInterest Change I Total Change
# ' Reason

0025225256 EC5160 AUTHORIZED 32728450 Refund Generated due to Tag 07/31/2015 8/4/201512:47:31 PM 1843
proration on Bill Surrender i

#0025225256-2014-2014-

0000-00

Submitted by £avcLfi^?^\ Date 3"vS"-/v3
Lisa S. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden County

Approved by Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County Board of Commissioners

Page 1of 3

Tax ($3 13) $0 00 ($3 13)

Refund $187 88

Page 102 of 157



TC906E 20 T15 ACS Tax System
Bill No. Parcel No.

R 83496 R 02-8945-00-91-7911.0000

2014

* * * GROSS TAX REVERSAL

Collections Inquiry
Name Transaction Jnfo
ROBERT FRANCIS JAMES III P

Reason 9 MORT. REFUND REQUEST
Receipt 262023
Trans# 219218

Posted as of 04/14/2015
Cash Drawer 1 04/14/2015

Payee Name GREEN TREE SVCG,LLC-

Posted on

Posted By
Check Number

Bank Name

06/30/2015 112424
TERI Terminal WO T

230072320

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

COUNTY

COURTHOUSE FIRE

SF 30

** TOTAL BILL

INTEREST CITY

COUNTY

* INTEREST TOTAL*
* * * * TOTAL * * * *

1,326.56'
22.49

10.86'

1,359.91-

57.80-

57.80-

1,417.71-

'""Mortgage Company requested a refund for the payment made on an accounty that has
a payment agreement.

Refund is to be sent to: Green Tree

c/o CoreLogic
1 CoreLogic Drive
Westlake, TX 76262

Submitted by sim Date

Lrsa £>. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden County
?- Ac/- (£_

Approved by Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County BOard of Commissioners

Page 103 of 157



FROM: CAMDEN COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR OFFICE

(1) REQUEST THE FOLLOWING CHANGES BE MADE

(2) EXPLANATION: ( ) OVERCHARGED (

( ) LATE LISTING (

YEAR C^CHfb TOWNSHIP OH
NAME ""TVvPIYV^ fr\\g f"S (.1103% ni)

N? 17890

) DOUBLE LISTING

OTHER 1V\\liVQrU

address ?)Ofj VOhvVe V^Vl ^Rc\ .
OacvxAp.iN, PC <3n^3u

PIN # ooamabs^

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

\QV\S

RELEASE

PROPERTY VALUE COUNTY FIRE INTEREST

Personal

Real

Total

PICK UP

PROPERTY VALUE COUNTY FIRE INTEREST

Personal

Real

Toral

ADTUSTMENf/REFUND ^\

PROPERTY VALUE COUNTY FIRE INTEREST

Personal

Real

\CfbhOToral \>SS

v. juuL v w

L\

BILL#

BILL#

BILL#

£212iLS^

TAX ADMINISTRATOR /^j^QXJxSLju<&P

APPROVED DAY OF 20_

HAIRMAN OF COMMISSIONERSXOUNTY MANAGER

Page 104 of 157



August Refunds

MYERS. 305
THOMAS WHITEHALL

RD

CAMDEN NC Adjustment
27921 SI00

REFUNDS OVER $100.00

North Carolina Vehicle Tax System

NCVTS Pending Refund report

0027726549 DHN4233 AUTHORIZED 33779940 Refund Generated due Military 08/19/2015 8/20/2015 8 12 33 AM 1843
to adjustment on Bill * 2
*0027726549-2015-

2015-0000-00

Submitted By {fy*^ ^ -CU^Ja^C^^^ Date Q- /- I
Lisa S. Anderson, Tax Administrator Camden County

Approved By Date

P. Michael McLain, Chairman Camden County BOard of Commissioners

Page 1 0' 3

Tax (S105 60) SO 00 (S105 60)

Tax ($1.55) SO 00 * (S1.55)
Refund S107.15

Page 105 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.F 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8th, 2015 

Attachments:   1 

Submitted By: Tax Office 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Authorization to Collect 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Authorization to Collect – October renewals 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 106 of 157



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

TO: The Tax Administrator of Camden County October Ren. Due 11/15/15 (NEW
SYSTEM)

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set
forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax Administrator and in the tax receipts
herewith delivered to you. in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set
forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon personal property of the
respective taxpayers in the County of Camden, and this order shall be a full and sufficient
authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell personal property of such
taxpayers for and on account thereof, in accordance with the law.

SOUTH MILLS COURTHOUSE SHILOH TOTAL

17,577.83 17,665.99 9,310.01 44,553.83

Witness my hand and official seal this day of

Chairman. Camden County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of Camden Count}

This is to certify that I have received the tax receipts and duplicates for collection
in the amounts as listed herein.

"ax Administrator of Camden County

Page 107 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.G 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8th, 2015 

Attachments:   2 

Submitted By: Admin 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Constitution Week 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Staff received the attached proclamation request. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 108 of 157



National Society Daughters of the American Revolution
Betsy Dowdy Chapter, 3-012-NC

Elizabeth City, North Carolina

Mr. Michael Renshaw

PO Box 190

Camden, NC 27921

August 12, 2015

Dear Mr. Renshaw

The Betsy Dowdy Chapter NSDAR respectfully requests that you present this
proclamation at your first meeting in September 2015

After signature and presentation, we respectfully request that you return it in the
self-addressed stamped envelope

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely

Cora deShong Wade, Regent
Betsy Dowdy Chapter NSDAR
cdwade3@gmail.com

(252) 435-6477

Page 109 of 157



Proclamation

Constitution Week

September 17-23, 2015

WHEREAS, September 17, 2015 marks the two-hundred twenty-eighth anniversary of
thedrafting ofthe Constitution ofthe United States ofAmerica by theConstitution
Convention; and

WHEREAS, itis fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent
document and its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebrationswhich will
commemorate the occasion; and

WHEREAS, Public Law 915guaranteesthe issuing ofa proclamation each year by the
President ofthe United States ofAmerica designating September 17th through 23 as
Constitution Week,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, thatwe, the Camden County Board of
Commissioners, NC do hereby ask all citizens to reaffirm the ideals the Framers ofthe
Constitution had in 1787 by vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through
this guardian ofliberties, remembering that lost rights may never be regained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and affixed the Great Seal ofthe County
of Camden, NC.

P. Michael McLain
Chairman

Page 110 of 157



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

          
 
 
 

Item Number:       7.H 

     

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 
 

Attachments:   Ordinance 2015-08-01, letters from Sheriff and  

                                    County Attorney  

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing: Ordinance No. 2015-
08-01 - Proposed amendments to Chapter 151 
(Unified Development Ordinance) of the Camden 
County Code Ordinances 

 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Proposed amendment to Table of Permissible Uses (Article 151.334), 
permitting Private Outdoor Firing Range for Law Enforcement Only (Use # 
6.310) with the approval of a Special Use Permit.  Range will be subject to 
the Specific Standards set out in Article 151.347 (S) of the UDO (attached) 
and any conditions applied to the Special Use Permit. 
 
Planning Board met on August 19, 2015 and after presentation from Sheriff 
Perry, Planning Staff and discussion with Planning Board, Ordinance 2015-
08-01 was recommended for approval on a 7-0 vote. 
  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Set Public Hearing for September 21, 2015 

 

 

  

  

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs     ____ 

T. White        ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

M. McLain     ____ 

S. Duckwall   ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

T. White         ____ 
C. Riggs       ____ 
ABSENT        ____ 
RECUSED     ____ 
 

Page 111 of 157



 

Ordinance No. 2015-08-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Code of Ordinances 

   

Camden County, North Carolina 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 

Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as otherwise 

incorporated into the Camden County Code. 

  

Article II. Construction 

 

For purposes of this Ordinance, underlined words (underline) shall be considered as 

additions to existing Ordinance language and strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be 

considered deletions to existing language.  New language of proposed  ordinance shall be 

shown in italics (italics) and underlined. 

 

Article III.  Amend Chapter 151 as amended of the Camden County Code  

                         which shall read as follows: 

 

 
  CHAPTER 151:  UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 

  

 

§ 151.334  TABLE OF PERMISSIBLE USES. 

 
USE# DESCRIPTION R-1 R-2 R-3 CCD NCD HC MC GUD I-1 I-2 

  

 

6.310 

 

Priviate Outdoor Firing 

Range – Law 

Enforcemenet Only 

 Subject to §151.347(S) 

                

    S   

  

   S 

  

   S 

 
 

 

 

Page 112 of 157



Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this   
 
day of September, 

2015. 

 

 

       County of Camden 

 

       _____________________________ 

        P. Michael McLain, Chairman 

       Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Angie Wooten 

Clerk to the Board 

 
 

Page 113 of 157



Page 114 of 157



Page 115 of 157



Page 116 of 157



Page 117 of 157



Page 118 of 157



Page 119 of 157



Page 120 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   7.I 

 

 Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8th, 2015 

Attachments:   2 (7Pages) 

Submitted By: Admin 
 

ITEM TITLE:    Shiloh Baptist Church 

 Historical Road Marker 

     

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

 

 

Staff received the attached resolution request. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 

Review & Approve  

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 121 of 157



 

RESOLUTION No. 2015-09-01 

 

IN SUPPORT FOR A STATE HISTORICAL HIGHWAY MARKER IN  

SHILOH TOWNSHIP, CAMDEN COUNTY TO COMMEMORATE THE  

RICH HISTORY OF THE SHILOH BAPTIST CHURCH 

 

WHEREAS, the Shiloh Baptist Church was first organized by early colonists by or before 1727 and 

provided the community a place of worship and fellowship; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Shiloh Baptist Church was led by many able pastors including Reverend Henry 

Abbott who served during the American Revolutionary War and was elected to the State Congresses 

in 1776; and 

 

WHEREAS, the present sanctuary was built in 1848-49 and was occupied by Federal Troops during the 

Civil War for use as an arsenal; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Shiloh Baptist Church continues to flourish and is known and recognized by business 

and civic leaders throughout Camden County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County Board of Commissioners are of the unanimous opinion that Shiloh 

Baptist Church is an historical treasure of the State of North Carolina and to the Camden County 

community and that its historical significance should be memorialized. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Camden County Board of Commissioners that the 

North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, Office of Archives and History, through its 

Highway Historical Marker Advisory Committee is hereby respectfully requested to erect a State 

Historical Highway Marker at the site of the Shiloh Baptist Church. 

 

This is the 8th day of September, 2015. 

   

  Michael McLain - Chairman 

ATTEST:   

 (SEAL)  

   

Angela Wooten – Clerk    

 

Page 122 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History Page 1 of 6

Shiloh Baptist ChUrCh Linking the past to the future, through the present.

Home About Us Join Us Ministries Guests Resources Contact Us Photos Prayer Request

(Please be patient with us while we make improvements to this page starting 5/26/2015)

A Brief History

Drawing by Michael W. Holcomb 2008

In 1660 and 1662 Yeopim King Kiscutanewh granted land to Nathaniel Batts and George Durantrecognized as the first land deeds in North
Carolina. By 1697 theYeopim leaders complained to the colonial government about nearby European settlers encroaching ontheir lands.
In 1704 the Executive Council granted 10,240 acres (16 square miles) along both sidesofthe North River to the Yeopim Nation. The deed
for the reservation granted the Yeopim exclusive hunting and fishing rights. The area known as Indiantown was only about six miles north
ofRaymons/Raymonds Creek where the first worshipers ofwhat would become Shiloh Baptist Church first began tomeet.

The beginnings of Shiloh Baptist Church are humble and span back to before 1727, when a Baptist missionary named Paul Palmer,
organized the Shiloh Baptist Church. William Burges (spelled with one "s") was the first pastor. The total population of the area known as
North Carolina was about 30,000 people. The entireAlbemarle area accounted for approximately 4,000 residents. In 1711, the Tuscarora
Indians, who lived on the southern side of the Albemarle Sound, went on the warpath and almost overwhelmed the colonists of the
Albemarle region. The Yeopim/Yawpim Nation who had settled around the North River on the nearest reservation to what is now the
township of Shiloh, in Camden County were not greatly involved in the Tuscarora Wars since the two tribes were not allied with one
another. Most likely, therewere more Indians than colonists living in the area around the shores and rivers of the Albemarle region. Since
the colonists were scattered and transportation was difficult, the organized church began meeting once a month in the home of William
Burges which was located about three miles south of the present location of Shiloh Baptist Church at the head of Raymons/Raymonds
Creek. Prior to 1775, present day Camden County was still a part of Pasquotank County requiring that official business be carried across
the Pasquotank River to be recorded.

The earliest known existing record of the Shiloh Baptist Church is a petition to the Court of Pasquotank Precinct, requesting that the court
record the meeting of the Baptist Congregation. This petition was signed on the bottom right by William Burges; also to the left are the
signatures of Paul Palmer, Francis Brocket, Thomas Herenton (modern spelling Harrington). William Jones, Philip Torksey (there are
several modern spellings including Toxey and Doxey), Robert Wasson, and Charles Scarborough (once misinterpreted from the script on
the original document as "Leutrough"). Shiloh Baptist Church is the oldest continually worshipping Baptist church in North Carolina. By
1727 people were worshiping in the home of pastor, Rev. William Burges. The number of worshipersgrew and in 1736 Reverend Burgess

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_Lis/history 9/3/2015

Page 123 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History Page 2 of 6

built a small church next to his home. The petition was made by the church to the King's Court September 5. 1729for them to continue
worshiping as they had been forseveral years. A photographic copy is available in the church today.

According to Morgan Edwards, an early Baptist Historian, a meeting house was built on the land of the pastor, William Burges in 1736.
Edwards gave the membership at that time as about 30. His records also showJanuary20, 1758,as the date whenthe constitution of the
church changed from the Generalto the Particular Order. He lists the names of 12 members who had "embraced the paiiicular
scheme" and states that "in 13years theyincreased from 12 to 192" and that "most of thebrethren of the General Persuasion" had rejoined
them. When these 12 defected to the Particular Baptists, they erected a separate meeting house, described by Edwards as being fifty feet
by twenty-five feet on the ground owned by the pastor, John Burges, son of William Burges.The meeting house was located on Portahonk
Creek, a distance of about three miles from the 1736 meeting house, and across the road from the present building.

The new location near the present location was now about halfway between Raymons Creek and Indiantown. A marker was placed on this
site in 1974. In 1723. the Yeopim Indians had gained permission to sell their reservation land and began to sell their land in multiple parcels
over time. By this time the Yeopim leaders had taken on English names such as John Durant, John Barber, John Hawkins, Henry Gibbs,
and George Durant so it becomes difficult to determine from any surviving primary documents the degree of interaction between the church
and the Yeopim people from the reservation. Evan Forbes served the church as pastor 1829-1842. 1845-1848, 1851-1853, and 1853-1857.
James Forbes and his family, originally from Scotland, were admitted to North Carolina on October 20. 1701. James Forbes was granted
532 acres on the east side of the Pasquotank River on October 21, 1715. This land was adjacent to the Yeopim Reservation so it is
reasonable to think that there was at least some interaction between the Forbes family and the Yeopim. Wesley Episcopal Methodist
Church in Old Trap began meeting around 1834. Providence Baptist Church located In what is now Shawboro in Currituck County was
originally called Providence Meeting House in 1817 and was constituted as a Baptist church in 1826. Although the evidence is mostly
circumstantial, it is likely that if the Yeopim Indians accepted Christianity and assimilated with the Colonial Europeans that Shiloh is where
they would have had the greatest opportunity to do so.

The present sanctuary, which originally included a balcony for Negro Members, was built in 1848-49, at the cost of $2400.00. This meeting
house was built on land included in John Burges' estate. In 1774, John's son, Dempsey Burges, conveyed the property to the Baptist
Society.

This photograph made by Zoeller, Morgan Company around 1895 pictures the congregation of Shiloh Baptist Church soon after
the steeple was added to the building. Mary and Luke Stevens donated funds and labor to add the steeple in 1878. Luke Stevens
died from flu and pneumonia on March 8, 1878 and Mary Stevens died from the flu ten days later. (Courtesy of Linda Ann
Mansfield.) Page 89, Camden County, by A. Burgess Jennings, Arcadia Publishing.

Several additions have been made to the 1849structure. The Steepleand bell were added in1878. The presentwindows were installed in
1913.

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_Lis/history 9/3/2015

Page 124 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History

The Weekly Calendar

*?• Windown: were changed in 191 'k

Eighteen Sunday School rooms were built in 1924 and fourteen more were added in 1954-55.

This photo ufShiloh Baptist Clmn.li taken in
1924 shows that the church had now added an

addition io the rear ofthe building.

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_Lis/history

Page 3 of 6

9/3/2015

Page 125 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History Page 4 of 6

Shiloh BapiisL Church 1933-1935

The present entrance and vestibule were added in 1947.
When the sanctuary was renovated in 1949, the baptistery was installed, the choir loftwas built and an electric organ was purchased. This
organ was replaced in 1973. New pews were purchased in 1955, and the structure was bricked in 1966.

The sanctuary was air-conditioned in 1969, and in 1974, airconditioning was installed throughout the rest of the church. New pev/s were
purchased in 1955, and the structure was bricked in 1966. The Fellowship Hall, Pastor's Study, and offices were added in 1992. In 1994.
the Children's Playground was built.

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_Lis/history 9/3/2015

Page 126 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History Page 5 of 6

^ifilntl Ufaptat OHjurdj
Shlto-h. North Carolina

Although the spiritualgrowth of the church cannot be accurately measured, a glimpse of its membership at specific times, during its history,
might be significant. We do not know how many members there were when the church was organized in 1727. In 1736, the membership
was given as about 30. By 1800, membership had increased to about 200. Associational minutes record membership in 1848 at about 369,
316 whites and 53 blacks. In 1857. membership had grown to 448, 369 whites and 79 blacks.

Serviceswere interrupted during the Civil War,while FederalTroops occupied the building and used itas an arsenal. Associational minutes
of 1890 list 91 male members and 316 female members. In 1925, there was a total of 461 members; in 1961, records show 617
members. In2002, there were 457 members listed. In2008, we had approximately481 members on the church roll.

The church has not been without some controversy. As mentioned earlier, in 1758 the membership split over doctrinal differences. The
minutes of the Kehukee Association reveal that Shiloh Church was admitted to that association in 1771,butwas expelled in 1775because
the church and pastor, Henry Abbott, took a stand against proposed reforms. The church was readmitted in 1778 and remained with that
association until 1806, when the Chowan Association was formed.

Therehave been four name changes since the church was formed. The first name given to the church was Burges' Meeting House. Itwas
changed to North Meeting House and later, to Camden Meeting House. In 1812, the name Shiloh was adopted. The name Shiloh is biblical
and means peaceable or pacific. Shiloh was the ancient city of Ephraim, which was one of the earliest and most sacred Hebrew
sanctuaries.

• In 1831, Sunday School was organized within the church.

• We do not knowwhen the Women's MissionaryUnion(WMU) was organized, but itwas listed in the associational minutes in 1906.

• In January 1919. Reverend Joel Brown became the first full time pastor.

• The first Training Union was organized in 1921.

• Shiloh extended its ministries to the surrounding area by organizing nine churches:

Pungo, nowknown as Oak Grove Baptist. Princess AnneCounty, VA, in1762
Yoppim, in Chowan County, NC, in 1771
Cowenjock (now spelled "Coinjock"), in Currituck County, NC, in 1780
Knobs Crook, now known as First Baptist, in Elizabeth City, NCin 1786
Flatty Creek, now known as Salem Baptist, in Weeksville, NC, in 1790
Sawyer's Creek, in Camden, NC 1790
Shady Grove, in Currituck County, NC, in 1828
Oak Ridge, in Riddle (Camden County) NC, in 1889
Pleasant Grove, in Indiantown (Camden County) NC, in 1891
(Oak Ridge, and Pleasant Grove nolonger exist, though Shiloh Baptist absorbed much ofthe memberships ofthe two churches.)

Many ministers have been ordained here at Shiloh Baptist. They are listed as follows:

William Burges Sr.
Joshua White

Wlliam Lurry
Evan Forbes
Abner Berry
John L. Pritchard

William Burges Jr.
Thomas Etheridge
David Biggs
Jesse Bray

Wells Briggs
A.W. Burfoot

John Burges
David Duncan

Lemuel Burkitt

Benjamin Dozier
Charles S. Burgess
Gideon Bray

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_Lis/history 9/3/2015

Page 127 of 157



Shiloh Baptist Church: History Page 6of 6

Charles B. Williams M.B. Toxey James B. Sawyer
Don Clinton Steve Hughes Kenneth Wallace

The most noted of these, was Dr. Charles B. Williams. Dr. Williams was ordained in 1890 and later became an educator and author. He
taughtGreek at SouthwesternSeminary, from 1905-1919. He held the position of Deanthe last six years at Southwestern. He served as
president at Howard College from 1919-1921. Dr. Williams went on to Mercer University, in Georgia, where he taught New Testament
Interpretation for four years. He then became a professor of Greek and Ethics at Union University inTennessee until 1932. Dr. Williams
most noted literary work is his translationof the New Testament into the language of the people. {Moody Press 1949) In 1941, Dr. Williams
returned to Shiloh and served as pastor until 1946.

In 1968, Shiloh Baptist extended its ministries by broadcasting the Morning Worship Service over the radio in Elizabeth City, NC, at
WCNC. The broadcast continued until 1980.

Shiloh Church has also be influential in political affairs. One of our early pastors, Henry Abbott, was elected to both the State Congress
Meetings in Halifax, NC in 1776. On April 12,1776, the first Congress adopted the famous Halifax Resolves. The last paragraph of the
Halifax Resolves reads in part: "Resolve, that the delegates for the Colony in the Continental Congress, be empowered to concur with the
delegates of the other colonies in declaring Indepencency..."

The Provincial Assembly met again in Halifax, in November of that same year. One of Abbott's assignments was with a "committee to
form, and lay before this House a Billof Rights, and form a constitution for the government of this state". Tradition credits Abbott with being
the author of Article Nineteen of the State Constitution, "Thatall men have natural and inalienable rights to worship Almighty God according
to the dictates of their conscience."

Dempsey Burges was a member of the majority of the congress convened during the Revolutionary period, including the two at Halifax, in
1776. Burges became Lt. Colonel in the Continental Army, during the Revolutionary War and was a member of the United States
Congress from 1795-98. According to Baptist Historic Papers, in 1776, the deacons of Shiloh Church were asked by the newly elected
governor, to serve as Magistrates and Conservators of the peace, until the machinery of state government could be put into
operation.

In 1990, Shiloh church history added a new page. Earline Revelle was ordained as the first woman deacon to serve in the church and
served Shiloh Baptist Church as an active deacon for three terms.

In 1995, Andrea Garrettwas hired as an American Sign Language Interpreter.

In May of 2000, Shiloh Baptist embarked on a more relaxed style of worship. The Early Worship Service began. It provided a relaxed
atmosphere with Praise andWorship Music, a condensed version of the sermon for the 11:00 Worship Service, anda morecontemporary
worshipexperience. This worship experience stillgoes on in2015.

©2015 Shiloh Baptist Church g52 Hwy. 343 South | P.O. Box 31 | Shiloh, NC | 27974 | 252-336-4280

Website Powered by Community Spice

http://shiloh-baptist.com/content/about_us/history 9/3/2015

Page 128 of 157



 

 

Camden County 

 South Camden Water & Sewer District  

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number 4.A 

 

New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   9/8/15 

Attachments:   1 (1 Pages) 

Submitted By: David Credle, Public Works 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Monthly Update to the Board 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Report to the Board about the work orders, locates and general 

maintenance water / sewer items for the month of August. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Information only. 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 129 of 157



South Camden Water & Sewer Board 

Monthly Work Order Statistics Report 

Period:  July 2015 

 

 Submitted Work 
Orders 

Completed Work 
Orders 

Percentage 
Completed 

Status of 
Uncompleted Work 

Orders 

Water 
Collection/Distribution 

233 233 100% 0 

Sewer 21 21 100% 0 

Locates: 

 Water Line: 53 

 Sewer Line: 20 

         Water & Sewer, same ticket: 3 

Public Works Director Notes/Comments: 

(Outstanding maintenance issues, staffing issues, etc.) 

Page 130 of 157



 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

 

Item Number:   4.B 

 

New Business 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8, 2015 

Attachments:   3 (12 Pages) 

Submitted By: Michael Renshaw, County 

Manager 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Construction of Seymour Drive Well Site and 

Raw Water Main 

 

 

 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

In 2014 the County acquired approximately five acres of land near the 

intersection of Seymour Drive and Country Club Road.  In accordance with 

needs identified in the Long-Range Water and Sewer Comprehensive Master 

Plan 2010-2030 and the approved Capital Improvement Plan 2016-2020 

(CIP), the construction of the Seymour Drive Well Site and raw mater main 

connecting the Site to the existing Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant 

will better position the County to meet future public drinking water needs 

for both residential and commercial development.  This project is listed in 

the approved CIP as a Priority 1 level project for FY 15/16. 

 

The Seymour Drive Well Site property was chosen due to its close proximity 

to the current Water Treatment Plant (significantly reducing construction 

costs related to the extension of the 12 inch raw water main).  The 

construction of this new well site will produce an additional 150-200 GPM of 

raw water (the actual number may be more or less upon construction).  The 

WTP reverse osmosis train requires 715 GPM to operate.  We now operate a 

deep and shallow well at each site.  The deep wells have ammonia levels that 

when concentrated will soon become an issue under the county’s current 

discharge permit. 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 131 of 157



 

The county has retained the services of engineering consultants Diehl & 

Phillips, P.A. and have been provided all required plans, specifications, and 

construction contract documents need for project bidding.  The County 

Attorney is currently working with the Public Works director to revise the 

location of a 45 foot easement on the property as well as obtaining the 

required harmonics letter from Dominion Power. 

 

Budget Amendment 2015-16-BA002 has been prepared by the Finance 

Officer in the amount of $485,000 to cover the expenses related to this 

project.  Funding will be drawn from Capital Reserve and Water/Sewer 

Upgrade Fund Balances. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The County Manager recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve 

Construction of Seymour Drive Well Site and Raw Water Main project funding in 

the amount of $485,000 and authorize the County Manager to proceed with 

soliciting construction bids. 

Page 132 of 157



Page 133 of 157



Page 134 of 157



CAMDEN COUNTY

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
CONTRACT 1 - RAW WATER MAIN EXTENSION

INDEX OF DRA WINGS
RAW *,

NCSS

hah or £w w* mid i

UISCELLANEOUS DCrAllS

• • • • . : ••••- ;

DIEHL & PHILLIPS, P.A.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS - I.IC. NO. C-0465

1500 I'INEY PLAINS RD., SUITE 200
CARY. N.C. 27518 • (919) 467-9972

\ V....:.-"-\

6/10/1»

/
WRAW

WATER

MALN

S EXIST. RAW
y WATER MAIN

EXIST. WATER

TREATMENT PLANT

s

/

V

SEYMOUR

PRODUCTION

WELL

EXIST. WELLS

VICINITY MAP

Page 135 of 157



Z
M

,-2
*

k
tv

v
-il-j.'i'l.T

O
a
t

a
im

s
-a

x
s
m

v
-u

i
s
n

u
tre

i
M

9
"O

N
o

n
-M

M
B

N
I
o

n
h

tis
n

c
o

V
d

'S
d

in
iH

d
=

?
T

H
3

IQ
d

^
a

N
O

M
n

x
i

n
jv

w
a
m

i
m

v
*

-1
id

v
tu

n
o

o

ID
H

fO
H

d
SIN

H
W

H
A

O
&

H
M

W
3

1
A

S
H

H
1

V
M

a
IN

H
C

D
N

H
C

M
V

D

c
o

m
a
t
u

l
n

v
i
o

t~
a

<
i

an
o

w
A

as)
re

u
h

sd
n

o
n

o
tv

o
n

v
t
t
h

m
N

o
u

a
n

a
o

a
a

H
n

o
m

a
s

w
a
u

n
iv

w
a
a
iV

M
m

v
h

Page 136 of 157



1
!e1*

-.:

f;i
|

11

lU
A

-cn
to

u
J

•
ilia

o
n

'u
iv

d
a

x
in

n
s

-
a
n

s
n

iy
tj

o
m

i
o

k
i

8
9

W
D

O
N

O
n

•
S

Q
I
N

C
N

J
D

N
U

-m
S

N
C

O

v
d

'S
d

m
i
H

d
=

?
i
H

3
i
a

d
^
a

N
O

B
N

lL
a

N
IV

W
1

Q
1

V
M

M
V

H
-1

JO
V

a
lN

O
D

lD
3

fO
H

d
SIN

H
W

H
A

O
H

dW
l

Y
G

X
fS

H
3

1
V

M
A

IN
T

IC
O

N
3

0
N

V
D

N
O

L
L

V
5H

JO
D

N
ID

O
Id

H
O

d
-

(O
H

A
T

T
U

N
V

ID
)

8
C

U
H

SD
N

0
N

O
1

V
N

IV
W

JE
U

V
M

M
V

M
1

S
T

X
3

J
O

N
V

T
d

Page 137 of 157



cl
J
/
^

IS
;

ii
T

't.
, -

1
..

.

i
M

E
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S
D

B
T

A
I1

B

ir
!

.-
fK

r
*

1

•
9

3
if

^
"

«
c

I
s.;

s-
)=

;i
g;

§
t,

3
.*-

,.i
l—

a o

5-
=

r
-
:

•
.-•

c
T'

t.f
r

•
*

.
r

If
ll

s*
-

F
Si

>
n

8 z I 5
'T

C
A

M
D

E
N

C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
A

T
E

R
S

Y
T

E
M

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
P

R
O

JE
C

T
C

D
N

tS
A

C
Il

-R
A

W
W

A
T

E
R

M
A

N
E

X
T

E
N

S
IO

N

JO
2

1
a 23

Q
*

P

h
i

tM
§

L
.i-

J

;S

D
IE

H
L

&
P

H
IL

L
IP

S
,

P
.A

.
C

O
N

S
U

U
IM

S
IN

C
a

O
B

B
-U

C
M

X
C

a
a

i»
m

a
n

r
n

ji
B

a
is

.a
ii

ii
a

s
C

M
tt

,K
c
m

a
«

p
is

n
o

«
g

i

v
y
*

i
r

i

a
IP

!
;a

fc
^
I
U

»
!

l

Page 138 of 157



CAMDEN COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
CONTRACT 2 - SINGLE PRIME CONTRACT FOR

SEYMOUR PRODUCTION WELL

PNDEX OF DRA WINGS

I H7C PLAH

«ru house - Pim uo opuls

*tll HOUSE - OfYvUJGNS

WU HOUSE - ELCCIRiCAi POUCH PLAN * IICHHW PiAH

*EU MOOSE - ElCCIUCAl POKED RlSCft OIACDAU* PANEL SCHEDULCS

DIEHL & PHILLIPS, P.A.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS - I.IC. NO. C-0465

1500 PINEY PLAINS RD., SUITE 200
CARY, N.C. 27518 • (919) 467-9972

'/

EXIST. WATER

TREATMENT PLANT

NEW WELL

EXIST, WELLS

I ^

VICINITY MAP

N,

Page 139 of 157



WEPTT CENERAL NOTES

EROSION CONTROL LEGEND

)

TOTAL DISTURBED AREA- 0.91 AC

EXISTING UTILITIES NOTE:

3

• .

TAIL DITCH DETAIL

Page 140 of 157



G

C
A

M
D

E
N

C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
A

T
E

R
S

Y
T

E
M

IM
PR

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

PR
O

JE
C

T
C

O
K

n
iA

C
T

2
-S

T
JC

L
E

P
R

IM
E

C
C

T
C

T
R

A
C

T
fO

R

g
a
n

a
a
g

a
s
n

a
o

o
u

i

Q
S

p

.

D
IE

H
L

&
P

H
IL

L
IP

S
,

P
.A

.
C

C
T

C
L

X
T

P
JC

E
N

O
N

T
E

K
S

-
U

C
N

O
C

«
*

5
1

5
0

0
fl

N
E

Y
P

L
A

P
C

K
D

.
SU

T
T

E
M

O
CA

UY
.N

C7
7?

1S
.

(7
H»

)*
C-

9C
T

Page 141 of 157



W
E

L
L

H
O

U
S

E
-E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

C
A

M
D

E
N

C
O

U
N

T
Y

W
A

T
E

R
S

Y
T

E
M

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
P

R
O

JE
C

T
C

O
N

T
K

A
C

T
a

-S
P

iG
L

E
H

m
a

O
O

N
IK

A
C

T
K

M
g

m
io

u
iw

o
C

T
ic

n
o

N
W

ii
U

.

•
S

p
D

D
E

H
L

&
P

H
IL

L
IP

S
,
P

.A
.

O
0

N
S

U
U

D
K

2
D

)a
N

IB
B

-I
J
C

N
a

C
«

ie

a
u

n
r
.H

C
.g

s
a

.
m

o
4

P
«

c
t

JU
L

.

-k
-

-
I
L Sl

M
tS

!

Page 142 of 157



I \

SCADA POLE DETAIL

POWER PLAN

\ \

\
J=L_I

LIGHTING PLAN

Page 143 of 157



' "" '• ; 10QA3P
ct cracurr

CABINET BREAKER

P-I

lOQASPCBN.
CIRCUIT
BREAKER

MUTf-Al If; l'.k**i[.

m l/l
10QA3P
DOUBLE
THROW
SWITCH

POWER RISER DIAGRAM

JJL.

;P PAN!
lOkVA

TRANS.

^T

PUMP
VFD

%

T~ "U

w.'.in mi .-.w: hi.s

PAHCU HUUI1TIH5 :.!> lAlt

1.1| |jr,c«-"i> ts^s;
0;-—','«••• •• ; ••

tip.

i^-'3TALLi.«-'l.r,_V.

Tf.TAl i.r.M.n :.;ti tDAIU J.4-.

Page 144 of 157



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Item Number:    

 

INFORMATION 

 

Meeting Date:   September 8
th

, 2015  

Attachments:   9 

Submitted By: Various Department Heads 
 

 

ITEM TITLE:   INFORMATION 
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

A. Sales Tax Report 

B. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - July 

C. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - August 

D. EMS Monthly Report - July 

E. Library Monthly Report - August 

F. New Deputy Commissioners Appointed 

G. Mobile App for Job Seekers 

H. NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

S. Duckwall     

G. Meiggs        

M. McLain        

C. Riggs           

T. White   

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

S. Duckwall   

G. Meiggs   

M. McLain   

C. Riggs      

T. White  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

Page 145 of 157



Page 146 of 157



Page 147 of 157



Page 148 of 157



Page 149 of 157



Call Date Location En Route On Scene Response Time 

7/2/2015 1417 S 343 Hwy 10:33 10:48 0:15

 267 Ivy Neck Rd 16:38 16:43 0:05

426 Old Swamp Rd 20:49 21:06 0:17

7/3/2015 140 Keeter Barn Rd 14:06 14:07 0:01

7/4/2015 191 W US 158 HWY 13:03 13:10 0:07

315 Main Rd 20:47 20:55 0:08

7/5/2015 140 Keeter Barn Rd 13:06 13:13 0:07

110 Cedar Branch Rd 15:37 15:52 0:15

7/7/2015 368 Lambs Rd 10:49 10:55 0:06

476 North River Rd 16:32 16:44 0:12

724 N Hwy 343 16:36 16:46 0:10

158/Havenwood 19:13 19:18 0:05

100 W US 158 Hwy 19:26 19:33 0:07

7/8/2015 217 Lamb's Rd 17:00 17:10 0:10

300 Bridge Ct 19:38 19:42 0:04

7/9/2015 101 Park Dr 12:46 12:56 0:10

154 Dock Landing Loop 18:15 18:21 0:06

7/11/2015 744 Sandy Hook Rd 7:38 7:57 0:19

284 Lamb's Rd 16:21 16:27 0:06

7/13/2015 109 Bourbon St 13:02 13:06 0:04

7/14/2015 117 N 343 13:32 13:34 0:02

 217 N 343 Hwy 19:52 19:53 0:01

7/17/2015 Upton Rd/Seymour 9:14 9:17 0:03

7/20/2015 217 Lamb's Rd 10:57 11:03 0:06

894 N 343 Hwy 21:02 21:13 0:11

7/23/2015 206 Maddrey Dr 8:53 8:59 0:06

158 Country Club Road 18:31 18:36 0:05

7/24/2015 103 Camden Ave 15:54 16:07 0:13

163 Upton Rd 19:57 20:01 0:04

7/25/2015 140 Keeter Barn Rd 14:09 14:10 0:01

7/27/2015 600 Main St 11:53 11:58 0:05

230 Lilly Rd 13:03 13:08 0:05

114 Long Pine Rd 14:14 14:17 0:03

2871 US 17 Hwy 14:24 14:35 0:11

315 Main Rd 16:50 16:56 0:06

300 Bridge Ct 18:23 18:26 0:03

104 Elliott Dr 19:50 20:05 0:15

7/28/2015 143 Pier Landing Loop 9:42 9:58 0:16

744 Sandy Hook Rd 12:00 12:16 0:16

7/29/2015 379 Old Swamp Road 13:21 13:24 0:03

7/31/2015 102 McCoy Rd 9:19 9:26 0:07

2362 US 17 Hwy 13:50 13:56 0:06

214 Riverview Ave 16:52 17:02 0:10

0:07 Camden Average Response Times

Pasquotank-Camden EMS Camden Response Times - July 2015

Page 150 of 157



Camden County Public Library 

August Statistics 

 
 

 Visitor Count: 2,730 

 Days/Hours Open: 26/286 

 # Items in Collection:  12,060 (Opening Day Collection # Items = 4,755) 

 Total Check Outs/Renewals: 3,674 

 Library Card Holders: 2,253 

 Computer/ Wireless Use: 1,122 

 Juvenile Programs : 7 programs / 80 attendance 

 Adult Programs :   1 program / 8 attendance 

 Meeting Room:   3 reservations / 25 attendance 

 

 

 

 

 
Daily attendance for the month of August, compared by year (2013-2015). 

 

 

1694 

2090 

2730 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Aug-13 Aug-14 Aug-15

Daily Camden Public Library Attendance 

Page 151 of 157



 
Number of library materials checked out in August, compared by year (2013-2015). 

 

1779 

2312 

3674 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Aug-13 Aug-14 Aug-15

Number of Camden Public Library Materials 
Checked Out 

Page 152 of 157



 

 

 

 

August 3, 2015 

 

 New Deputy Commissioners Appointed   
 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

 

Raleigh, N.C. - North Carolina Industrial Commission Chairman Andrew T. Heath has announced the 

appointment of seven deputy commissioners.  Chairman Heath has appointed Leigha Blackwell Sink and Jesse 

“Jay” Tillman and re-appointed current Deputy Commissioners Philip A. Baddour, III, J. Brad Donovan, James 

C. Gillen, Myra L. Griffin, and Adrian A. Phillips.  All appointments are for six-year terms.  Deputy 

commissioners function as the Industrial Commission’s trial-level judges and hold hearings in contested workers’ 

compensation cases, state tort claims, and other matters.  

 

“Deputy commissioners play a significant role in protecting the rights of North Carolina’s workers and 

businesses,” said Chairman Heath.  “I am very pleased to appoint this experienced and skilled group to hear and 

adjudicate the Commission’s diverse caseload.” 

Leigha Blackwell Sink previously practiced workers’ compensation law with the firm of Gallivan, White & 

Boyd, P.A. in Charlotte, NC.  Prior to her time in private practice, she served as an Assistant Attorney General 

for the South Carolina Attorney General’s Office, and clerked for South Carolina Circuit Court Judge Edgar W. 

Dickson. Ms. Sink is a graduate of the University of North Carolina, and earned her law degree from the 

University of South Carolina.  Ms. Sink is admitted to practice law in both North Carolina and South Carolina.  

Jesse “Jay” Tillman most recently practiced general civil litigation with The Bond Helfing Law Group in 

Charlotte, NC.  Previously, he spent ten years in both the Raleigh and Charlotte offices of Cranfill, Sumner, and 

Hartzog, LLP.  Mr. Tillman is an officer in the United States Navy Reserve and recently served as Special 

Assistant and Operations Risk Management Officer to the Fifth Fleet Commander in Bahrain.  He is a recipient 

of the Legion of Merit and Defense Meritorious Service Medal.  Mr. Tillman is a graduate of the University of 

North Carolina, the Campbell University School of Law, and is admitted to practice law in both North Carolina 

and South Carolina. 

Philip A. Baddour, III joined the Industrial Commission as a Deputy Commissioner in November 2000. From 

1996 to 1999, Mr. Baddour practiced law in Goldsboro, primarily in the areas of personal injury and workers' 

compensation. In 1999, he joined the North Carolina Attorney General's Office as an Assistant Attorney 

General in the Tort Claims Section. As an Assistant Attorney General, he represented state agencies in workers' 

compensation and tort claim actions. Before entering law school, he served as a Legislative Assistant to 

Congressman Martin Lancaster. Mr. Baddour is a graduate of the University of North Carolina, the Campbell 

University School of Law, and also serves as a First Lieutenant in the North Carolina National Guard. 

Pat McCrory, Governor  

Andrew T. Heath, Chairman 

 

Charlton L. Allen, Commissioner 

Bernadine S. Ballance, Commissioner 

Linda Cheatham, Commissioner 

Danny Lee McDonald, Commissioner 

Tammy R. Nance, Commissioner 

North Carolina 
Industrial Commission 

 

Page 153 of 157



J. Brad Donovan came to the Industrial Commission in 1997 as a Special Deputy Commissioner and was 

appointed a Deputy Commissioner in October 2003.  Prior to that time, he spent two years as a clerk in the Raleigh 

law firm of Edmisten and Weaver, and eight years as a member of Staff Counsel to the North Carolina Court of 

Appeals.  Mr. Donovan is a graduate of the University of Kansas and the North Carolina Central University 

School of Law.  He has published law review articles in the areas of family law and appellate practice. 

James C. Gillen has served as a Deputy Commissioner since May 2005.  He previously served as a Special 

Deputy Commissioner as well as an Agency Legal Specialist for several former Commissioners.  He is a 

graduate of North Carolina State University and the Campbell University School of Law. 

Myra L. Griffin has served as a Deputy Commissioner since February 2005.  Before her appointment as a Deputy 

Commissioner, Ms. Griffin worked as an Assistant Attorney General with the Tort Claims Section of the N.C. 

Department of Justice. In this capacity, she served as Agency Counsel to the Industrial Commission and 

prosecuted cases with the Fraud Investigations Unit.  Ms. Griffin previously served the Commission as both an 

Agency Legal Specialist and Special Deputy Commissioner.  She is a graduate of the University of North Carolina 

and the North Carolina Central University School of Law. 

Adrian A. Phillips joined the Industrial Commission as a Deputy Commissioner in May 2002.  Prior to her 

appointment, she worked as an Assistant Attorney General in the Tort Claims Section of the Department of 

Justice and she was assigned to the Industrial Commission as Agency Counsel.  She served as Supervisor and 

Prosecutor of white-collar crime in the Medicaid Fraud Division from 1998-2000.  Ms. Phillips also served as 

an Assistant District Attorney in Caswell and Person counties.  She is a graduate of Bennett College and the 

North Carolina Central University School of Law.  

 

 

Contact: Kim Genardo  

    Director of Communications 

               North Carolina Department of Commerce 

    (919) 733-3438 

Page 154 of 157



Anqela Wootenigela

Subject: Commerce Department Launches Mobile App for Job Seekers

Release: Immediate Contact: David Rhoades

Date: August 18, 2015 Phone: (919)715-6556

Commerce Department Launches Mobile App for Job Seekers

Raleigh, N.C. - NCWorks Career Centers are now registering more job seekers on the new NCWorks mobile
app to connect them to meaningful employment.

The mobile app allows users to apply for jobs, compare their skills to job requirements, find training
opportunities, and learn more about a career or industry through wage and employment projections. In the
mobile app, individuals search for jobs by keyword or circling a select area and all job postings within that
circumference will be displayed.

"We want North Carolina's job seekers to have access to the best jobs in the market," said Will Collins,
executive director of NCWorks. "By connecting people to jobs and training resources in their areas, we can
help them get back on their feet and improve the lives of our communities.

The app also contains special features for veterans, who can review job postings up to 24 hours in advance of
the general public and search for civilian careers using the Military Occupational Code.

Registration for NCWorks Online is free. The app is free to download for the [Phone, iPad and Android devices.
N.C. Commerce Workforce Solutions operates the NCWorks app.

About NCWorks Online

NCWorks Online is a free service that provides several benefits to job seekers and employers. Job seekers can
search job posts pulled from thousands of websites and receive alerts through email and text message.
Employers can post jobs to find the talent they need, as well as take advantage of real-time labor market
information that will assist them in making competitive offers to recruit talented workers. For more information
about NCWorks Online, visit www.ncworks.gov.

For more information about the N.C. Commerce Workforce Solutions, visit www.necommerce.com/workforcc.

Page 155 of 157



1

Angela Wooten

From: NC
Sent: Thursday, August 27, 2015 2:27 PM
To: info@camdencountync.gov
Subject: [Release] NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans

Pat McCrory, Governor                                                                John E. Skvarla, III, Secretary 
                                                                                         

 
 

NORTH CAROLINA  
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

 
 

 
NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans 

 
NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans 

 
RALEIGH – NCWorks Career Centers’ ongoing support for military veterans seeking employment takes a 
healthy turn thanks to a new partnership with The Produce Box, a local organization that sells and distributes 
fresh produce grown by North Carolina farmers.  
 
The Produce Box, located in Raleigh, turned to NC Commerce’s Workforce Solutions team for help after 
searching for unique ways the company could assist veterans.  The two organizations agreed to provide 
complimentary boxes of fresh produce to out-of-work vets and their families through the state’s career centers, 
which already work closely with veterans to help them find jobs and training programs.   
 
“We’re working hard to make North Carolina the state of choice for vets, in ways both large and small,” said 
N.C. Commerce Secretary John E. Skvarla III. “While our main focus is to connect veterans with training 
programs and job opportunities, this gift from The Produce Box provides an additional helping hand.”  
 
“We are so proud that our members support their communities through The Produce Box,” said Courtney 
Tellefsen, founder and chief executive officer of the Produce Box.   “Donating our Hero Boxes to veterans was 
a new effort for us this year, and we were glad to give back to those who mean so much to our country.” 
 
This month, 114 boxes of fresh produce were distributed to veterans through the career centers in Charlotte, 
Raleigh, Wilmington, and Winston-Salem. 
 
CeJae Briscoe, a veteran of the U.S. Navy and Air Force, was one recipient of the distribution.  Briscoe used the 
NCWorks Career Center in Raleigh to connect with a job opportunity at Volunteers for America.  A single 
mother of two children, Briscoe recently accepted a full-time position—also a promotion—at Passage Home, 
one of the organization’s sister agencies.  
“Had I never come here,” Briscoe said, referring to her career center, “I would have never known about either.”

  Release: Immediate    Contact: David Rhoades
Date: August  19, 2015                        Phone:  (919) 715‐6556 

Page 156 of 157



2

 
“As a part of NCWorks, we are committed to improving the lives of our vets by helping to connect them to jobs 
and training after they’ve left the service,” said Will Collins, assistant secretary for workforce solutions.  “These 
produce boxes are one of the many ways we can express our gratitude to the brave men and women who have 
served our country.” 
 
NC Workforce Solutions is a part of the North Carolina Department of Commerce.  
 
NCWorks  
 
The NCWorks initiative includes the NC Commerce Division of Workforce Solutions, the NCWorks 
Commission, the NC Department of Public Instruction, and the North Carolina Community College 
System.  The goal is to create a stronger alignment of services and resources to meet the workforce needs of 
businesses, connect North Carolinians to technical training and quality careers, and use data to monitor and 
assess program outcomes.  For more information about NCWorks, visit www.nccommerce.com/ncworks.  
  
For more information about NC Workforce Solutions, visit http://nccommerce.com/workforce.  
 
### 
 
 
 
 
David Rhoades 
Deputy Communications Director 
North Carolina Department of Commerce 
 
919 715 6556    office 
919 218 0542    mobile 
drhoades@nccommerce.com 
 
301 North Wilmington Street  
4301 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699-4301 
 
 

 
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the 
North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties. 
 

You are currently subscribed to pressreleases as: info@camdencountync.gov. 
You may unsubscribe to discontinue these mailings. 

Page 157 of 157



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  1 

Regular Meeting 2 

May 4th, 2015 3 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 

Camden, North Carolina 6 

MINUTES 7 

 8 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held 9 

on May 4th, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The 10 

following Commissioners were present: 11 

 12 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 13 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White; 14 

 15 

Also attending were County Finance Officer Stephanie Humphries, County 16 

Attorney John Morrison and Clerk to the Board Angela Wooten.  Present for 17 

purposes of making a presentation(s) or providing supporting information for 18 

agenda items were the following persons:  Planning Director Dan Porter, Tax 19 

Administrator Lisa Anderson. 20 

 21 

 22 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 23 

 24 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the May 4th, 2015 meeting of the 25 

Camden County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 26 

 27 

 28 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 29 

 30 

Commissioner Sandra Duckwall gave the invocation and led those present in the 31 

Pledge of Allegiance. 32 

 33 

 34 

Public Comments   35 

 36 

None 37 

 38 

 39 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Consideration of Agenda  40 

 41 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Not 42 

hearing any changes, Chairman Michael McLain called for a motion.   43 

 44 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  45 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 46 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 47 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 48 

voting. 49 

 50 

 51 

Presentations 52 

 53 

Item 3.A - Keith Hamm, BA, QP Mobile Crisis Supervisor 54 

 55 

Keith Hamm, Mobile Crisis Supervisor for the Albemarle Area gave a brief 56 

overview of the Mobile Crisis Program and how it has impacted the lives of 57 

several Camden Citizen in 2014. 58 

 59 

Integrated Family Services PLLC Mobile Crisis Management is a service available 60 

24 hours a day/365 days per year at no cost to the individual receiving the service. 61 

Our Mobile Crisis Team is endorsed by East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) 62 

to provide this service in Northeastern NC including Camden. 63 

 64 

Mobile crisis responds to individuals in the community in an effort to deescalate 65 

their crisis, develop appropriate strategies for symptom reduction, and make 66 

linkages to services designed to prevent future crisis situations. This service 67 

responds to crisis situations involving mental health, substance abuse, and 68 

individuals who are developmentally delayed. 69 

 70 

In 2014, IPS Mobile Crisis responded to 30 individuals in Camden County and 71 

83% were diverted from inpatient care and incarceration. Of those individuals, 5 72 

requests came from Law Enforcement. Additionally, 7 clients were referred 73 

directly from schools in Camden County. 74 

 75 

 76 

 77 

 78 

 79 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Public Hearings 80 

 81 

Item 4.A - Ordinance 2015-04-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2015-03-11) 82 

Harbinger Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp – Gary Dunston 83 

 84 

Commissioner Sandra Duckwall made a motion to go into public hearing for 85 

Ordinance No. 2015-04-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2015-03-11) Harbinger 86 

Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp – Gary Dunston.  The 87 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 88 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 89 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 90 

voting. 91 

 92 

Planning Director Dan Porter, advised the board Mr. Gary Dunstan owner/part 93 

owner of both properties has applied to rezone approximately 41 (farmland) of 94 

the 50 plus acres from Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1). 95 

Property located at the intersections of Sandy Lane, Keeter Barn and Sharon 96 

Church Roads in South Mills Township. Staff presented the rezoning to the 97 

Planning Board on April 15, 2015 with the applicant present and after discussion 98 

Planning Board made the following motions:  99 

1. Consistency Statement: Approved a motion that the application for rezoning 100 

was consistent with both the CAMA Land Use Plan and Comprehensive Plan 101 

as both allowed densities of 1 acre lots.  102 

2. Motion was made and approved to rezone the 41 acres (farmland) from Basic 103 

Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1).  104 

 105 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any comments from members of 106 

the public that wish to come forward. 107 

 108 

Larry Hewitt of Sharon Church Road in South Mills states that he and his wife 109 

chose their 9 acre lot because it has been a dream of theirs to live in the country.    110 

He would not like to rezone the development to 1 acre lots.   111 

 112 

Mark Bissell advises that there are many benefits of having one acre lots allow 113 

them to build a higher level of design with all housing frontages on interior 114 

streets.  He also mentions that there will be no driveways or mail boxes on the 115 

state roads.  The entire woodland area can be either preserved or turned into a 116 

park. He believes the county will like the development.  He then asks if there are 117 

any questions from the board. 118 

 119 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall asked how many houses would be built on the 41 120 

acres. 121 

 122 

Mr. Bissell replied it would be in the low 40’s. 123 

 124 

Commissioner Tom White requested information with regard to size of the 125 

proposed homes when built on 1 acre lots. 126 

 127 

Gary Dunston of Kitty Hawk is one of the developers and advised they are 128 

proposing to 2000sq/ft. – 2500sq/ft. homes in the $300,000 range.   129 

 130 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any further comments from the 131 

public regarding this issue.  Hearing none, he advised that the board would vote 132 

at the next regular meeting due to opposition heard during the public Hearing. 133 

 134 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to close the public hearing.  The 135 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 136 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 137 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 138 

voting. 139 

 140 

 141 

Board Appointments 142 

 143 

Item 5.A - Economic Improvement Council 144 

 145 

Chairman McLain informed the board that the Economic Improvement Council 146 

is looking for a volunteer to replace Camden’s current representative.  Clerk to 147 

the Board Ms. Wooten confirms that currently the county does not have any 148 

volunteer applications on file for the Economic Development Commission and 149 

that Commission meets every other month..  150 

 151 

Chairman Michael McLain requests that anyone interested in serving on the 152 

Economic Development Commission should completed a Volunteer Application 153 

and submit it to the County Managers office.  Once there is a willing volunteer on 154 

file, he will request this appointment be added to the agenda for the following 155 

regular meeting.   156 

   157 

 158 

 159 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Consent Agenda 160 

 161 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 162 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 163 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 164 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 165 

not voting. 166 

 167 
 168 

Item 6.A - Draft Minutes –March 2nd, 2015 169 

 170 
 171 

Item 6.B - Budget Amendments – BA022 172 

 173 

 
 174 

 175 
 176 

Item 6.C - School Budget Amendments 177 

 178 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 

 
 179 

 180 
 181 

 182 

 183 

 184 

 185 

 186 

 187 

 188 

 189 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.D - Expenditure Request 190 

 191 

The Camden Volunteer Fire Department is requesting funds for needed 192 

equipment. 193 

 194 

 
 195 

 196 
 197 

Item 6.E - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 198 

 199 

 

 
 200 

 201 
 202 

 203 

 204 

 205 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.F - Expenditure Request 206 

 207 

The Camden Volunteer Fire Department is requesting to borrow funds for new 208 

Fire Truck. Propose 1% interest to avoid market rates and still provide interest to 209 

county for loss of interest on cash from bank and a repayment plan of $100,000 210 

per year over 5 years. 211 

 212 

 
 213 

 214 
 215 

Item 6.G - Volunteer Form - CEDC 216 

 217 

 
 218 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.H - Consortium Agreement Resolution 219 

 220 

 
 221 

 222 
 223 

Item 6.I - 2015 National Day of Prayer 224 

 225 

 
 226 

 227 
 228 

 229 

 230 

 231 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Item 6.J - Older Americans Month 2015 232 

 233 

 
 234 

 235 

New Business 236 

 237 

Item 7.A - Monthly Tax Report 238 

 239 

Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson presented the Monthly Tax Report for March 240 

2015. 241 

 242 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Top 30 Unpaid 

 
Top 30 Oldest 

 
Top 30 Unpaid 

 
Top 30 Oldest 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

 243 

The County Attorney John Morrison advised the board that Potomac Timber 244 

Investments paid their taxes of $13,979.14 in full. 245 

 246 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the monthly tax report as 247 

presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 248 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting 249 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner 250 

not voting. 251 

 252 
 253 

Item 7.B - Engineering Aspects of A Waste Water Treatment Plant 254 

 255 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs advised that the Engineer, Mr. Robey, was unable to 256 

attend tonight’s meeting therefore he makes a motion to recess this 257 

Commissioners meeting until 3:00 Thursday in the conference room of Hyman 258 

and Robey located at the intersection of Gumberry Road and US 158. 259 

 260 

Chairman McLain adds this meeting will be open to the public. 261 

 262 

Commissioners Riggs’s motion to recess passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice 263 

Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom 264 

White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 265 

Commissioner not voting. 266 

 267 

 268 

Commissioner’s Report 269 

 270 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall gave the Monthly Library Report.  271 

 272 

Commissioner Tom White provided some highlights from the very successful  273 

“Paddle for the Border”  in which there were 311 participants and many state 274 

dignitaries. 275 

 276 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs attended a K-12 Funding Class at the School of 277 

Government and wanted to let everyone know school funding reports are now on 278 

line for the public to view. 279 

  280 

 281 

 282 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Chairman Michael McLain  had the following items to report: 283 

 284 

 There is a Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for the Dollar General’s Grand Opening on 285 

Saturday May 9th, 2015 at 7:30 AM and invites the public to come. 286 

 There is an ECBH Grant for handicap accessible playground equipment and 287 

hopes the county will apply. 288 

 289 

 290 

Information from Board and Staff 291 

 292 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 293 

of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 294 

 295 

A. Elizabeth City Area Chamber Of Commerce 296 

B. Economic Value of the College of the Albemarle 297 

C. Library Report - April 298 

D. Scotland County Resolution 299 

E. County News April 20 2015 300 

F. N.C. Rural Infrastructure Authority Approves Grants 301 

G. NCACC Legislative Bulletin – April 17, 2015 302 

H. NCACC Legislative Bulletin - April 24, 2015 303 

I. House Bill 726 304 

J. Stepping Up 305 

K. Will ACOS Raise Medical Prices? 306 

L. Sales Tax & Revenue Collection Report 307 

M. Excise Tax Publication 308 

N. Register of Deeds - April 309 

O. National Flood Insurance Program Community Assistance Visit 310 

P. ECBH 311 

Q. LME County General Funds Report 312 

R. LGFCU Gives Back 313 

 314 

 315 

 316 

 317 

 318 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – May 4
th

, 2015 

 

Closed Session 319 

 320 

Chairman Michael McLain states the need to enter closed session pursuant to 321 

NCGS 143.318.11(a)(3) and 143.318.11(a)(5) potential litigation and contract 322 

negotiations. 323 

 324 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to enter closed session at 7:58 PM.  325 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 326 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 327 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 328 

voting 329 

 330 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to come out of closed session at 8:10 331 

PM.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 332 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 333 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not 334 

voting 335 

 336 

 337 

Meeting Recessed 338 

 339 

At 8:12 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to 340 

come before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 341 

meeting was recessed until 3:00 PM Thursday in the conference room of Hyman 342 

and Robey located at the intersection of Gumberry Road and US 158. 343 

 344 

 345 

 346 

   347 

 Chairman Michael McLain 348 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 349 

 350 

ATTEST: 351 

 352 

 353 

  354 

Angela L. Wooten 355 

Clerk to the Board 356 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  1 

Regular Meeting 2 

June 1st, 2015 3 

6:00 PM Closed Session 4 

7:00 PM - Regular Meeting 5 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 6 

Camden, North Carolina 7 

MINUTES 8 

 9 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on June 10 

1st, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The following 11 

Commissioners were present: 12 

 13 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 14 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White; 15 

 16 

Also attending were the County Manager Michael Renshaw, County Attorney John 17 

Morrison and Clerk to the Board Angela Wooten.  Present for purposes of making a 18 

presentation(s) or providing supporting information for agenda items were the following 19 

persons:  Public Works Director, David Credle and the Finance Officer Stephanie 20 

Humphries. 21 

 22 

 23 

Closed Session 24 

 25 

Chairman Michael McLain states the need to enter closed session pursuant to NCGS 26 

143.318.11(a)(3) and 143.318.11(a)(4)  to consultation with Attorney to discuss Current 27 

Litigation Case Number: 2:15-cv-00021 - Camden County et al v. Northeastern 28 

Community Development Corporation et al & to discuss economic development 29 

incentives. 30 

 31 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to enter closed session at 6:03 PM.  The 32 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners 33 

Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 34 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting 35 

 36 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to come out of closed session at 6:42 PM.  37 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 38 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 39 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting 40 

 41 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 42 

 43 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Joining the board in regular session for purposes of making a presentation(s) or 44 

providing supporting information for agenda items were the following persons:  Public 45 

Works Director, David Credle, Finance Officer Stephanie Humphries., Planning Director 46 

Dan Porter, Tax Administrator Lisa Anderson and Librarian Krystal Lancaster 47 

 48 

Call to Order 49 

 50 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the June 1st, 2015 meeting of the Camden 51 

County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 52 

 53 

 54 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 55 

 56 

Chairman Michael McLain gave the invocation and led those present in the Pledge of 57 

Allegiance. 58 

 59 

 60 

Public Comments - None 61 

 62 

 63 

Consideration of Agenda  64 

 65 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.   66 

 67 

The County Manager Mike Renshaw requested to have three items added to agenda. 68 

 69 

 Item 3.C - NCDOT Road Program Update 70 

 Item 5.F – Support of Currituck Opposition to House Bill 97  71 

 Item 5.G - Camden Bears Football Discussion 72 

Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  73 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 74 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 75 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 76 

 77 

 78 

Presentations 79 

 80 

Item 3.A - Elizabeth P. Floyd, CPA, PHR - Chief Financial Officer, NCACC 81 

 82 

The Chief Financial Officer of the NCACC, Mrs. Floyd, came before the board of 83 

commissioners to thank them for their continued membership.  She informs everyone 84 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

that Camden should all be proud to have two board members that have served on the 85 

NCACC board of directors.  Then Ms. Floyd gave a brief overview of the benefits NCACC 86 

members receive.   87 

 88 

Benefits 89 

 Education 90 

o Advanced leadership training 91 

 Conferences 92 

 Risk Management Insurance Pools  93 

o Liability and Property  94 

o Workers compensation 95 

 Debt Set off Program  96 

o Camden has recouped almost $87,000 from uncollected debts. 97 

 Lobbying  98 

 Advocacy  99 

 Expanded Services in Research  100 

She also stated that the NCACC has recently expanded services in their research 101 

department and members have received a return of Fund Balance for the first time in 102 

her 20 years with the NCACC. 103 

 104 

Item 3.B - Lisa Phillips – ARHS 105 

 106 

Mrs. Phillips gave a presentation about the negative effects of smoking. 107 

 108 
Item 3.C – William Bridgers – NCDOT Road Program Update 109 

 110 

Assistant Division Maintenance Engineer William Bridgers came before the board to 111 

share some details about the Budget and Program status. 112 

 113 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 

 
 114 

 115 

Old Business 116 

 117 

Item 4.A - Ordinance 2015-04-01 – Rezoning Application – (UDO 2015-03-11) Harbinger 118 

Land & Timber LLC and Assorted Development Corp. Gary Dunston. 119 

 120 

Planning Director Dan Porter reminded the board that at a Public Hearing held on May 121 

5th, 2015 staff presented the facts and findings of this Zoning issue.   122 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 123 

Mr. Gary Dunstan owner/part owner of both properties has applied to rezone 124 

approximately 41 (farmland) of the 50 plus acres from Basic Residential (R3-2) to Basic 125 

Residential (R3-1). Property located at the intersections of Sandy Lane, Keeter Barn and 126 

Sharon Church Roads in South Mills Township. Staff presented the rezoning to the 127 

Planning Board on April 15, 2015 with the applicant present and after discussion 128 

Planning Board made the following motions: 129 

 130 

1. Consistency Statement: Approved a motion that the application for rezoning 131 

was consistent with both the CAMA Land Use Plan and Comprehensive Plan 132 

as both allowed densities of 1 acre lots. 133 

2. Motion was made and approved to rezone the 41 acres (farmland) from Basic 134 

Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1). 135 

  136 

Mr. Porter then answered a few questions from the board. 137 

 138 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the rezoning as it is consistent 139 

with both the CAMA Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan fin that they both 140 

allow densities of one acre or more for that area and are a minimal impact on traffic and 141 

surrounding areas. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 142 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 143 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 144 

 145 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to rezone the 41 acres (farmland) from Basic 146 

Residential (R3-2) to Basic Residential (R3-1). Ordinance No. 2015-04-01 as presented..  147 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 148 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 149 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 150 

 151 

 152 

Public Hearings – None 153 

 154 

 155 

New Business 156 

 157 

Item 5.A - New Library Hours of Operation 158 

 159 

The County Librarian Krystal Lancaster presented a revised holiday schedule and daily 160 

operating hours as requested by the Camden Library Board of Trustees.  The increase in 161 

hours should not cause any increases in salary; however, the Finance Officer has 162 

estimated that utility costs may increase by $1,600 based on previous usage. 163 

 164 

 165 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Proposed Camden Public Library Holiday Closure Schedule 166 

 167 

 168 
 169 

Proposed Camden Public Library Operating Hours 170 

 171 

April 1 – October 31, Monday – Saturday, staff will arrive at 8:00 a.m., doors will open at 172 

9:00 a.m. and will close at 8:00 p.m. 173 

 174 

November 1 – March 31, Monday – Saturday, staff will arrive at 8:00 a.m., doors will open 175 

at 9:00 a.m. and will close at 6:00 p.m. 176 

 177 

During the entire year, on Sunday, the staff will arrive at 12:30 p.m., doors will open at 178 

1:00 p.m. and will close at 5:00 p.m. 179 

 180 

It was agreed there would be no trial period for the new operating hours and the 181 

Monday-Saturday hours will be effective July 1, 2015. Sunday hours will be effective 182 

November 1, 2015. 183 

 184 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the proposed Library hours as 185 

presented. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 186 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 187 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 188 

 189 

 190 
 191 

Item 5.B - Resolution Supporting Alternative Governance Structure for the Area 192 

Authority (Area Board of ECBH and Coastal Care) Serving Camden County 193 

 194 

The County Manager reminds the board of Liza Wainwrights April 20th presentation 195 

requesting the board’s approval of ECBH and Coastal Care merger.   196 

 197 

The County Manager’s Office has been advised that eighteen of the nineteen counties 198 

previously served by ECBH have approved the attached Alternative Governance 199 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

structure. The Camden County Board of Commissioners is now being asked to formally 200 

adopt the attached resolution in support of this Alternative Governance Structure. By 201 

approving the attached resolution, the Camden County Board of Commissioners will 202 

have the ability to appoint one elected official and one non-elected representative to 203 

serve on the Area Authority Regional Board. 204 

 205 

The County Manager has been advised that this decision is needed in order for the 206 

Regional Board to schedule and hold its first meeting prior to July 1, 2015. Should the 207 

Board of Commissioners opt not to approve and adopt the attached resolution Camden 208 

County may not have an opportunity to have representatives on the Area Authority 209 

Regional Board. 210 

 211 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 

 
 212 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. The 213 

motion passed 4-1 with Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, 214 

Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; Chairman McLain voting no; no 215 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 216 

 217 

 218 
 219 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Item 5.C - Student Generation Rates 220 

 221 

Planning Director Dan Porter advised the board that on April 16 the APFO Coordinating 222 

Committee recommended changing the Student Generation Rate for tracking impacts of 223 

housing development. If approved the new rates will be applied retroactively to the 224 

beginning of the current school year and carried forward into future years. The table 225 

below shows the exiting rates versus the rates as calculated from actual development 226 

over the last 10 years. 227 

 228 

 229 
 230 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the new Student Generation 231 

Rates as elementary .24, middle .23, and high school .18 for a total of .65 students per 232 

school. 233 

 234 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs wants to know what history is involved in the elementary 235 

school numbers because the enrollment numbers have dropped.  Dan Porter advised 236 

these numbers are based on a 10 year calculation. 237 

 238 

After some discussion Commissioner Riggs withdrawals his motion and requests 239 

information based on 3 year, 5 year, and 10 year development numbers. 240 

 241 
 242 

Item 5.D - Resolution Supporting EDA Public Works Grant Application 243 

 244 

The County Manager Mike Renshaw states that Camden County staff has prepared an 245 

application to the Economic Development Administration to assist in constructing an 246 

80,000 GPD sewer treatment plant in the Courthouse Township at a projected cost of 247 

approximately $1.8 million. The maximum EDA grant available is $500,000 and requires 248 

a $500,000 local matching contribution. 249 

 250 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 
 

 251 

Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall made a motion to approve the Resolution as with the 252 

modification.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra 253 

Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 254 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 255 

 256 
 257 

Item 5.E - FY 2015-2016 Annual Budget Message Presentation 258 

 259 

The County Manager Mike Renshaw presents an overview of the proposed FY 2015-2016 260 

Annual Budget.  He advises the public that two budget work sessions were held with the 261 

Board of Commissioners on May 19th and 21st, and there will be a Public Hearing on the 262 

Proposed Budget on June 8th at 7:00 P.M. in the Historic Courthouse. A detailed budget 263 

document is available at the Camden County Administrative Office (330 US HWY 158 264 

East) for public review. 265 

 266 

 267 

 268 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Budget Priorities  269 

• Implement an Ad Valorem tax at .68/$100 based upon recent revaluation 270 

(calculated revenue-neutral rate is .69/$100 valuation)    271 

• Provide a 2% Cost of Living Allowance to county staff    272 

• Invest wisely in critical water and wastewater treatment infrastructure    273 

• Fund expanded EMS in the county through addition of a second ambulance crew 274 

in South Mills Station 14    275 

• Reduce departmental operating expenses wherever possible    276 

• Maintain a healthy reserve fund balance in accordance with financial policies 277 

outlined in Resolution 2007-05-04    278 

• Continue to provide outstanding government services at adequate levels   279 

Economic Forecast  280 

• NC economy still slow to recover, expanding at only 1.7% in 2014     281 

• NCACC projects continued slow growth statewide of 3-4% in FY 15-16     282 

• Growth rate highly dependent upon local economic climate, housing starts, and 283 

state tax reform efforts     284 

• Aging population foretells lower consumer spending and smaller labor force  285 

   286 

• Fourteen of the 15 state economic sectors are expected to grow modestly, led by 287 

construction at 5.5%     288 

• Uptick in Camden retail/commercial economic activity     289 

Budget Snapshot  290 

• General Fund Budget of $11,802,839 (a 2.7% increase from FY 2014-2015)    291 

• Proposed Ad Valorem tax rate of .68 cents/$100 valuation (revenue-neutral tax 292 

rate calculated to be .69 cents/$100)    293 

• Proposed 3% Increase for School Current Expense, 100% of Capital Outlay 294 

Requested    295 

• 2% Cost of Living Adjustment for County Staff    296 

• Two new positions for FY 2015-2016 • Water/Sewer Distribution/Collection 297 

Operator (Full Time) • Solid Waste/Recycling Maintenance Worker (Part Time)    298 

• Funding of a second EMS crew in South Mills Township    299 

• Appropriation of $89,000 for Unified Development Ordinance re-write   300 

 301 

 302 

 303 

 304 

 305 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 306 

 307 

Major General Fund Expenditures 308 

 309 

Department FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016 
Governing Body  $103,515  $95,614  

Administration  $227,360  $214,667  

Elections  $104,080  $133,494  

Finance/HR  $278,002  $273,745  

Tax Office  $410,780  $404,850  

Legal  $50,000  $50,000  

Register of Deeds  $224,120  $202,714  

Planning/Inspections  $411,698  $480,978  

Public Works/Building & Grounds  $477,203  $532,956  

Sheriff/SRO  $1,611,646  $1,680,588  

Extension  $77,762  $101,540  

Parks & Recreation  $262,054  $261,180  

Senior Center  $121,589  $121,017  

Solid Waste  $654,950  $646,413  

Non-Departmental  $242,808  $198,643  

Economic Development  $150,918  $159,953  

Capital Outlay/Debt Service  $1,153,935  $1,050,321  

Library  $198,180  $198,861  

JCPC  $67,077  $67,631  

Soil & Water Conservation  $67,312  $62,263  

 310 

 311 

 312 

Departmental Expense as Percentage of GF 313 

 314 

Department % 
Governing Body  0.8% 

County Administration  0.2% 

Elections  1.1% 

Finance Department  1.7% 

Personnel  0.6% 

Tax Department  3.4% 

Legal (including OLF)  0.4% 

Register of Deeds  1.7% 

Planning Dept./Inspections  4.0% 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Public Works/Bldg. & Grounds  4.5% 

Non-Departmental  1.7% 

Sheriff & SRO  14.2% 

Solid Waste  5.4% 

Coop. Extension  0.8% 

Recreation  2.2% 

Senior Center  0.1% 

Economic Development  1.3% 

Capital Outlay/Debt Service  8.8% 

Special Appropriations  39.4% 

  315 

 316 

Special Appropriations Breakout 317 

 318 

School Current Expense 44.6% 

Pasquotank Camden EMS 10.4% 

Central Communications/EM 5.7% 

College of the Albemarle 1.0% 

Albemarle District Jail  8.7% 

Dept. of Social Services 7.0% 

Courthouse Shiloh VFD  5.2% 

South Mills VFD  3.1% 

School Capital Reserve Fund  7.0% 

 319 

 320 

General Fund Revenue Summary 321 

 322 

Source FY 2014-2015 FY 2015-2016 

Ad Valorem Tax  $6,309,347  $6,274,220  

Local Option Sales Tax (Article 39)  $525,000  $565,000  

Vehicle Tax  $573,200  $517,450  

Franchise Tax  $400,000  $625,000  

Medicaid Hold Harmless  $650,000  $650,000  

Article 40 Tax  $360,000  $425,000  

Article 42 Tax  $125,000  $125,000  

Special Revenue Fund (CRF for Debt Payments)  $458,702  $376,283  

School Reserve Fund  $695,232  $1,005,321  

 323 

 324 

 325 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

New Staff Position Summary 326 

 327 

Department Position Title Salary & Benefits 
Water/Sewer  Distribution/Collection Operator $45,657  

Solid Waste/Recycling Maintenance Worker (Part Time)  $5,851  

 328 

Summary    329 

• Proposed budget will meet the Board of Commissioners goals and priorities in a 330 

fiscally responsible manner    331 

• Addresses modest capital and staffing needs in several departments    332 

• Meets obligated payments of annual debt service    333 

• Provides adequate funding for the Camden County Public School’s operational 334 

and capital outlay needs    335 

• Addresses critical capital infrastructure needs    336 

• Proposed appropriation of only $95,178 of general fund balance   337 

 338 
 339 

Item 5.F – Support of Currituck Opposition to House Bill 97  340 

 341 

The Currituck Chairman Paul O’Neal sent a letter requesting the Camden County Board 342 

of Commissioners support Currituck’s opposition to house bill 97. 343 

 344 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to have staff draft a letter not supporting 345 

the removal of the Bonus Allocation of $100,000.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman 346 

McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and 347 

Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no 348 

Commissioner not voting. 349 

 350 
 351 

Item 5.G - Camden Bears Football Discussion 352 

 353 

In a letter dated May 27th the Camden Youth Football & Cheerleading program 354 

administrators indicated they would like to turn over operations to Camden County 355 

Parks and Recreation department as they are no longer able to provide these services.  356 

 357 

Chairman McLain and Commissioner Riggs confirm that the Shiloh Sharks have the 358 

appropriate liability insurance.  359 

 360 

 361 

 362 

 363 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Board Appointments 364 

 365 

Item 6.A - Economic Improvement Council 366 

 367 

This appointment was deferred from the May 4th, 2015 BOC meeting as the 368 

county does not have a volunteer to serve on the Economic Improvement 369 

Council.  If anyone is interested the clerk has posted a vacancy announcement on 370 

the county website. 371 

 372 
 373 

ITEM 6.B - Economic Development Commission    374 

 375 

 
 376 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to appoint Christopher Purcell to serve the 377 

Camden Economic Development Commission for a 2 year term expiring May 30th, 20117. 378 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 379 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 380 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting 381 

 382 
 383 

ITEM 6.C - Library Board of Trustees 384 

 385 

 386 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 387 
 388 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to appoint Mary Leigh Barrett to serve the 389 

Library Board of Trustees for a 3 year term expiring May 30th, 2018. The motion passed 390 

5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, Commissioners Garry Meiggs, 391 

Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 392 

Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 393 

 394 

 395 

Consent Agenda 396 

 397 

CommissionerGarry Meiggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented.  398 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall, 399 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 400 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 401 

 402 
 403 

Item 7.A - Draft Minutes –March 9th, 2015 BOC Retreat 404 

 405 
 406 

Item 7.B - Budget Amendments – BA023 407 

 408 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 

 409 
 410 

Item 7.C - School Budget Amendments 411 

 412 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 
 413 

 414 
 415 

Item 7.D - Tax Collection Report 416 

 417 

 
 418 

Item 6.E - Tax Refunds, Pickups, & Releases 419 

 420 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

Item 6.F - Tax Authorization to Collect (July Renewals) 421 

 422 

 
 423 

Item 7.G - Volunteer Form  424 

 425 

 426 

 427 
 428 

Item 7.H - Set Public Hearing Date  429 

 430 

Set the Capital Improvement Plan Public Hearing Date for June 15th, 2015 @ 7:00 PM. 431 

 432 

 433 

Commissioner’s Report 434 

 435 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall 436 

 May’s Library Report.  437 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs  438 

 RFPs Albemarle Regional Health Services’ RFPs are due today June 1st and he 439 

should have more information next week. . 440 

 441 

 442 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 443 

Chairman McLain 444 

 Audit appears to be approved 445 

 Solar Farms presentation at Albemarle Commission 446 

 Not reliable source of power 447 

 Only produces 5 hours per day 448 

 Massively Increases power bill 449 

 Government funded 450 

 451 

County Manager's Report 452 

 453 

 One Mill Park is almost complete. 454 

 The County Museum Track lighting is finished and the Museum should open in 455 

September. 456 

 Mr. Armstrong, Director of Recreation Resource Services has at NC State has 457 

found some funding for the Dismal Swamp Trail Extension.  458 

  459 

Information from Board and Staff 460 

 461 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy of 462 

these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 463 

 464 

A. Library Monthly Report – May 2015  465 

B.  Sheriff's Monthly Report - Apr 2015  466 

C.  EMS Reports  467 

D. Professional Development Program  468 

E.  Resolution by Moore Co  469 

F.  NCACC Budget Summary  470 

G.  Jobs Incentive Program for Tier 1 Counties  471 

H.  NCACC Legislative Bulletin – May 8th, 2015  472 

I.  NCACC Legislative Bulletin – May 15th, 2015  473 

J.  Resolution to Establish a National Task Force to address 474 

Coastal Issues  475 

K.  Resolution requesting revenue sharing  476 

L.  Sales Tax Report  477 

M.  BizConnect Broadband Pilot Grant Award  478 

N. Businesses Receive $246,000 to Invest in Workers’ Skills  479 

 480 

 481 

 482 

 483 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 1
st
, 2015 

 

 484 

Meeting Adjourned 485 

 486 

At 8:55 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to come 487 

before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the meeting was 488 

adjourned. 489 

 490 

   491 

 Chairman Michael McLain 492 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 493 

 494 

ATTEST: 495 

 496 

 497 

  498 

Angela L. Wooten 499 

Clerk to the Board 500 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

Regular Meeting  2 

June 15th, 2015 3 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Meeting 4 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 5 

Camden, North Carolina 6 

 7 

MINUTES 8 

 9 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held 10 

on June 15th, 2015 in the Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The 11 

following Commissioners were present: 12 

 13 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall; 14 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Tom White and Clayton Riggs 15 

 16 

Also attending were County Manager Michael Renshaw, and Clerk to the Board 17 

Angela L. Wooten.  Present for purposes of making a presentation(s) or providing 18 

supporting information for agenda items were the following persons:  Finance 19 

Officer Stephanie Humphries, Parks and Recreation Director Tim White., Tax 20 

administrator Kim Monton 21 

 22 

Regular Session, 7:00 P.M. 23 

 24 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the June 15th, 2015 meeting of the 25 

Camden County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 26 

 27 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 28 

 29 

Commissioner Tom White gave the invocation and led those present in the 30 

Pledge of Allegiance. 31 

 32 

 33 

Public Comments 34 

 35 

Steve Harris of 121 Shipyard Road in Camden came before the board with the 36 

following comments: 37 

 The repair at Academi was done with repair parts that were in the shop for 38 

1 ½ years. 39 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 Large metering systems have a bypass; therefore water supply would not 40 

be affected during repair. 41 

 Wet weather does not effect a water leak repair 42 

 The sewer pump at the duck thru was disabled, not repaired. leaving only 43 

one operational pump. 44 

 45 

 46 

Consideration of Agenda  47 

 48 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any changes to the agenda.   49 

 50 

Manager Renshaw noted the following changes to the agenda:   51 

 Remove Consent Agenda Item 7.A. Draft Minutes 52 

 53 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  54 

The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra 55 

Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and Clayton Riggs voting 56 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; and no 57 

Commissioner not voting. 58 

 59 

 60 

Presentations 61 

 62 

Item 3.A - Dr. Mason Economic Improvement Council 63 

 64 

Dr. Landon Mason from the Economic Improvement Council will update the 65 

Commissioners about the opportunities provided by the EIC to the residents of 66 

Camden. 67 

 68 

 Weatherization 69 

 Community Services Block Grant  70 

 Head Start 71 

 Section 8 Housing 72 

 73 
 74 

Item 3.B - County Tax Rate Review 75 

 76 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

This being a revaluation year in which we saw decreasing property values, the 77 

finance officer thought it would be helpful to layout the true effects of the 78 

decrease in property value and the resulting property tax equalization. In trying 79 

to equalize the tax values to be in line with market values, an adjustment to the 80 

tax rate is needed to neutralize the revenue we would have lost from keeping the 81 

previous rate. Typically, the values are not adjusted as significantly as they are 82 

this revaluation period. While our tax rate is being adjusted .09/100, other 83 

partnering counties saw rate increases in the double digits when adjusting for 84 

revaluations performed after the housing bubble. The last valuation caused a 85 

significant increase in values due to the housing boom and the result was a 86 

significant decrease in the tax rate. While the tax rates needs to be adjusted for 87 

the decrease in property values we are still not at the pre-housing boom rate of 88 

$.90/100. Even with the decrease in our tax base, we have been able to budget a 89 

tax rate below the revenue neutral rate of 1.2 cents a savings to taxpayers of 90 

$218,358 ($121,102/97,256). Many factors contribute to this but the major factor is 91 

the minimal increase in our annual operating budget from 14-15 to 15-16.  92 

 93 

The fund balance continues to be healthy allowing for savings that is being 94 

passed on to our citizens. We are also in a position to begin using our county 95 

resources to invest in infrastructure to provide improved service and economic 96 

development. Our citizens have expressed excitement and approval of the recent 97 

development such as the new Dollar General Store. 98 

 99 

While self-sufficiency of the South Camden Water and Sewer needed to be 100 

addressed with rate increases, it is important to recognize the fiscal responsibility 101 

this represents. The Local Government Commission as well as the Governmental 102 

Accounting Standards Board set standards that require using tax revenue to 103 

improve county services and Enterprise revenue to improve water/sewer services. 104 

Even though additional revenue may be needed in coming years, this year’s 105 

partial adjustment will bring additional revenue toward that standard while 106 

minimizing the effect to customers. 107 

 108 
 109 

Item 3.C - Water & Sewer Staffing 110 

 111 

The County Manager made a presentation on the need for the requested new 112 

Water & Sewer Collection/Distribution staff position in the FY 2015-2016 annual 113 

budget 114 

 115 

 116 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

Old Business 117 

 118 

Item 4.A- Camden Youth Sports Programming 119 

 120 

The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board has recommended allowing the Camden 121 

Youth League to operate a fall youth soccer program using existing field space 122 

made available through the Facility Use Agreement between the County and 123 

Camden County Public Schools. 124 

 125 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the Youth Sports Program 126 

as presented.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 127 

Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and 128 

Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 129 

and no Commissioner not voting. 130 

 131 

Public Hearings 132 

 133 

Item 5.A - Camden County Capital Improvement Program 134 

 135 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to go into public hearing for 136 

Camden County Capital Improvement Program.  The motion passed 5-0 with 137 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner 138 

Garry Meiggs, Tom White and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner 139 

voting no; no Commissioners absent; and no Commissioner not voting.  140 

 141 

Chairman McLain asked if there were any comments from the public in regaurds 142 

to the CIP. 143 

 144 

On March 16th the board met in a work session to discuss the Capital 145 

improvement Plan.  Since the work session staff has included a funding plan for 146 

each of projects listed as priorities in the plan. 147 

 148 

Projects added to the CIP 149 

 150 

 Wastewater treatment plan in the core area of the county 151 

 Future Camden County High School 152 

 Community Park in the South Mills Township 153 

 154 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any further comments from the 155 

public regarding this issue.  Hearing none, he called for a motion to close the 156 

public hearing. 157 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 158 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to close the public hearing.  The 159 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra 160 

Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and Clayton Riggs voting 161 

aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; and no 162 

Commissioner not voting. 163 

 164 

As no one spoke in opposition during the public hearing, Commissioner Clayton 165 

Riggs made a motion to add “Camden County Capital Improvement Program” as 166 

New Business item 6.F.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, 167 

Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White 168 

and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners 169 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 170 

 171 

 172 

New Business 173 

 174 

Item 6.A - Monthly Tax Report – April 175 

 176 

 177 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 178 

 179 

 180 

 181 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 182 

 183 
 184 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to approve the Monthly Tax Report 185 

as presented by staff.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, 186 

Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White 187 

and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners 188 

absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 189 

 190 

Item 6.B - Budget - Ordinance No. 2015-06-02 191 

 192 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

  



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

  

 

 

 193 

 194 

Commissioner Garry Meiggs made a motion to adopt the FY 2015-2016 Budget 195 

Ordinance No. 2015-06-02.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael 196 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom 197 

White and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 198 

Commissioners absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 199 

 200 

Item 6.C - Board Salaries - Resolution No. 2015-06-03 201 

 202 

 
 

 203 

 204 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2015-06-03 205 

FY 2015-2016 Board Salaries.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael 206 

McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom 207 

White and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 208 

Commissioners absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 209 

 210 

Item 6.D- Fee Schedule for FY2015-2016 211 

 212 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 
 

 
 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 

 

 

 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 
 

 213 

 214 

Commissioner Tom White made a motion to approve the FY 2015-2016 Schedule 215 

of Fees. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 216 

Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and 217 

Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 218 

and no Commissioner not voting. 219 

 220 

Item 6.E - Set the County tax rate for FY2015-2016 221 

 222 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 223 
 224 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the county tax rate for 225 

FY 2015-2016.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 226 

Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and 227 

Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 228 

and no Commissioner not voting. 229 

 230 

Item 6.F- Camden County Capital Improvement Program 231 

 232 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to accept the Capital Improvement 233 

plan as presented by staff.  The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael 234 

McLain, Vice Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom 235 

White and Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no 236 

Commissioners absent; and no Commissioner not voting.  237 

 238 

 239 

 240 

Consent Agenda 241 

 242 

The County Manager requested to remove item 7.A Draft minutes. 243 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 244 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 245 

amended. The motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice 246 

Chairwoman Sandra Duckwall, Commissioner Garry Meiggs, Tom White and 247 

Clayton Riggs voting aye; no Commissioner voting no; no Commissioners absent; 248 

and no Commissioner not voting.  249 

 250 

 251 

Consent Agenda 252 

 253 

Item 7.A - Draft Minutes – 2015-03-16 BOC CIP 254 

 255 

Removed 256 

 257 

Item 7.B - Budget Amendments – BA024 258 

 259 

 260 
 261 

Item 7.C - Tax Collection Report 262 

 263 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 264 
 265 

Item 7.D - Tax Authorization to Collect (Aug Renewals)  266 

 267 

 268 
 269 

Item 7.E - Elder Abuse Awareness Proclamation  270 

 271 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 272 
 273 

Item 7.F - Personnel Policy Revision 274 

 275 

The revision removes the language “six months” of, in an effort to make it just 276 

read probationary period as there are not only six months but nine and twelve 277 

months probationary periods for various departments. 278 

 279 

Item 7.G - Ordinance No. 2015-06-01 Supplement 14 Adoption 280 

 281 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 282 
 283 

Item 7.H - Set Public Hearing Date for Ordinance No. 2015-06-03 – proposed 284 

amendments to Chapter 151 (UDO) Code of Ordinances 285 

 286 

Proposed amendments to additional Specific Standards (Article 151.347) for Solar 287 

Farms and amendments to Floodplain Management language (Article 151.380 288 

thru 151.387) Set Public Hearing date for Monday July 6th, 2015. 289 

 290 

Item 7.I - Surplus - GovDeals 291 

 292 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 293 
 294 

Item 7.J - Set Public Hearing Camden Towne Center Sewer & Water Line 295 

Extension Betterment 296 

 297 

Set Public Hearing Date for July 6th, 2015 298 

 299 

 300 

Commissioner’s Report 301 
 302 

Vice Chairman Duckwall mentioned that as of July 1st the South Mills Fire 303 

Station will be staffed with an EMS crew. 304 

 305 

Chairman McClain added that the SPCA will be moving into a new building. 306 

 307 

 308 

County Manager’s Report 309 
 310 

County Manager Mike Renshaw had the following items to report: 311 

 312 

One Mill Park is on track and should be completed before the new Fiscal Year. 313 

 314 

 315 

Information from Board and Staff 316 

 317 

The following items were provided to the Board for their information, and a copy 318 

of these items is maintained in the Clerk’s office. 319 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Regular Meeting – June 15
th

, 2015 

 320 

A. Sheriff’s Monthly Report - May  321 

B. Register of Deeds Monthly Report - May  322 

C. Taylors Beach Landing Road Addition  323 

D. Albemarle Commission - Letter of Support for EDA Grant 324 

E. Sales Tax Distribution  325 

F. Senate Unveils Revised HB 117 Including Updated Sales Tax Distribution Plan, 326 

Questions Remain 327 

Meeting Adjourned 328 

 329 

At 8:30 PM, Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any other matters to 330 

come before the Board of Commissioners, hearing none, and by acclamation the 331 

meeting was adjourned. 332 

 333 

 334 

   335 

 Chairman Michael McLain 336 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 337 

ATTEST: 338 

 339 

 340 

  341 

Angela L. Wooten 342 

Clerk to the Board 343 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Special Meeting - Budget Hearing – June 8, 2015 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 

Budget Hearing 2 

June 8, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 3 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 4 

Camden, North Carolina 5 

 6 

MINUTES 7 
 8 

A special meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on June 8, 9 

2015 in the Upstairs Historic Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  The following 10 

Commissioners were present: 11 

 12 

Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chairman Sandra Duckwall, 13 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Tom White and Clayton Riggs; 14 

 15 

Also attending were County Manager Michael Renshaw, and Clerk to the Board Angela 16 

L. Wooten. 17 

 18 

Public Hearing 7:00 P.M. 19 
 20 

Chairman Michael McLain called to order the June 8, 2015 special meeting of the 21 

Camden County Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM. 22 

 23 

Chairman Michael McLain Clayton Riggs called for a motion to go into public hearing. 24 

 25 

Commissioners Clayton Riggs made a motion to go into public hearing for the purpose of 26 

receiving public input regarding the proposed FY2015-16 Camden County Budget.  The 27 

motion passed 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall¸ 28 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White voting aye; no 29 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 30 

 31 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any public comments regarding the 32 

proposed FY2015-16 Camden County Budget.   33 

 34 

Public Comments: 35 

 36 

A former Camden County Water and Sewer employee Steve Harris of Shipyard Rd came 37 

to the board with the following comments; 38 

 39 

Attended Water & Sewer school and feels the county runs their Water & Sewer 40 

Department completely opposite of what he learned. 41 

 42 

 Example #1 - Water Meters are your cash registers 43 

o In October 2012 the county’s largest water meter was reported broken and not 44 

repaired until January 2015. 45 

 Example #2 - Water system should be kept in good operating condition 46 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Special Meeting - Budget Hearing – June 8, 2015 

 

 

o In June 2013 Mr. Harris reported  12 inch water main was leaking at the Noblett 47 

Farm on Highway 343  48 

 Example #3 – Sewer Lift Stations are in poor condition 49 

o Most stations run with a damaged pump or no pump at all 50 

o Raw sewage seeps out  51 

o Camden county Log books are not updated. 52 

Terri Faison of 234 South 343 in Camden comes to the board as the manager of River 53 

Bridge Apartments in Camden.   54 

 55 

 The River Bridge apartment complex has 84 units all having 2 bedrooms and one 56 

bathroom.   57 

 Having paid $40,000/yr. in taxes and $33,000 for Water & Sewer usage in 2014, the 58 

complex is a major asset to Camden. 59 

 Upset about the proposed increase to taxes, water & Sewer fees and additional 60 

personnel 61 

 She believes that the board has spent money frivolously and is now looking to the tax 62 

payers for a bail out.   63 

Chairman McLain asked if there were any other comments from the public. Hearing none 64 

he asked the County Manager Mike Renshaw to give a brief overview of the proposed 65 

FY2015-16 Camden County Budget: 66 

 67 

Manager Renshaw states that a copy of the proposed budget is on file in the clerk’s office 68 

for public inspection.  He then gave brief overview of the proposed FY15-16 Camden 69 

County Budget.   70 

 71 

Snapshot of Proposed FY15-16 Camden County Budget 72 

 73 

 General Fund $11,802.839 - 2.7% increase from the current budget 74 

 Ad Valorem Property Tax $0.68/$100 valuation - 1% reduction 75 

 3% increase to schools current expense 76 

 2% cost of living increase for county staff 77 

 1 Full Time and 1 Part Time employee 78 

 $220,000 adding additional EMS coverage at the South Mills VFD Station 14 79 

 $89,000 UDO Rewrite  80 

Outstanding Items from the May 19
th

 & May 21
st
 Budget Work Session  81 

 82 

Courthouse/Shiloh VFD 83 

 84 
Amend the proposed $469,000.00 county fire truck purchase loan to 85 

$219,000.The fire commission has advised they will use $250,000.00 of their available 86 

fund balance, leaving $219,000 needed from the county. 87 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Special Meeting - Budget Hearing – June 8, 2015 

 

 

 88 

This makes a net effect of $86,000 in revenue.  89 

 90 

Fund Balance Appropriations 91 

 92 
The County Manager recommends applying the $86,000 to the required fund 93 

balance appropriation, reducing it from $181,000.00 to $95,178.00. 94 

 95 

McClees Contract Funding 96 

 97 

The County Manager asks for the board’s direction on the McClees Contract as 98 

this was not included in the proposed budget. Current $15,000 agreement with McClees 99 

will expire in December 2015. 100 

 101 

After much discussion, it was decided to see reevaluate in December when the agreement 102 

expires as the county can doo a budget amendment if they agree. 103 

 104 

Schedule of Fees  105 

 106 
Adopt and update the current Schedule to include a Commercial Gravity Sewer 107 

Connection Fee of $3,500.00. 108 

 109 

Update the previously approved $30.00 Lifetime Dog & Cat License fee and the Solar 110 

Panel Fees. 111 

 112 

Public Defender and District Attorney Office Space 113 

 114 

North Carolina requires each county to provide adequate office space for the 115 

Public Defender and District Attorney.  Camden allots $11,704 to Pasquotank County for 116 

this space, as Camden does not have adequate space for this.  The board directs the 117 

county manager to look into the cost of providing this space within Camden.   118 

 119 

Chairman Michael McLain asked if there were any questions for Manager Renshaw.   120 

Hearing none, he called for a motion to come out of Public Hearing. 121 

 122 

Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall made a motion to come out of public hearing.  The motion 123 

was approved 5-0 with Chairman Michael McLain, Vice Chair Sandra Duckwall¸ 124 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Clayton Riggs and Tom White and voting aye; no 125 

Commissioner voting no; no Commissioner absent; and no Commissioner not voting. 126 

 127 

  128 



CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS    

Special Meeting - Budget Hearing – June 8, 2015 

 

 

Meeting Adjourned 129 
 130 

By acclamation of Chairman Michael McLain, the meeting was adjourned at 7:36 PM. 131 

 132 

 133 

 134 

 135 

 136 

   137 

 Chairman Michael McLain 138 

 Camden County Board of Commissioners 139 

ATTEST: 140 

 141 

 142 

  143 

Angela L. Wooten 144 

Clerk to the Board 145 


	AGENDA
	PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARING
	NEW BUSINESS
	Monthly Tax Report
	Core Area Waste Water Treatment
	Darkness to Light

	BOARD APPOINTMENTS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	Draft Meeting Minutes
	May 4th, 2015 - Regular Session
	June 1st, 2015 - Regular Session
	June 15th, 2015
	June 8, 2015,

	Budget Amendments
	Expenditure Request
	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Refunds, Pickups & Releases
	Authorization to Collect
	Constitution Week
	Set Public Hearing
	Historical Road Marker

	SCWSD
	Monthly Update to the Board
	Seymour Drive Well Site andRaw Water Main

	INFORMATION
	Sales Tax Report
	Register of Deeds Monthly Report - July
	Register of Deeds Monthly Report - August
	EMS Monthly Report - July
	Library Monthly Report - August
	New Deputy Commissioners Appointed
	Mobile App for Job Seekers
	NCWorks Career Centers Give Free Food to Veterans




